# Sparta Area Schools

# BOARD OF EDUCATION and the SPARTA EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

JULY 1, 2021 – JUNE 30, 2024

Master Contract Agreement

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

AGREEMENT	4
WITNESSETH	4
ARTICLE I Recognition.	4
ARTICLE II Association Representation.	5
ARTICLE III Board Rights	5
ARTICLE IV Teacher Rights	6
ARTICLE V Sparta Education Association Rights	6
ARTICLE VI Cooperative Decision Making.	7
ARTICLE VII Professional Compensation.	8
ARTICLE VIII Teaching Loads, Hours, and Assignments	10
ARTICLE IX Teaching Conditions	11
ARTICLE X Vacancies-Promotions-Transfers	13
ARTICLE XI Seniority of Personnel-Reduction and Recall	15
ARTICLE XII Leave Pay and Leave of Absence	17
ARTICLE XIII Evaluation of Ancillary Staff	20
ARTICLE XIV Teacher Protection.	22

### ARTICLE XV

Grievance	24
Level I	24
Level II	24
Level III	24
Level IV	25
ARTICLE XVI	2.5
Miscellaneous Provisions.	25
ARTICLE XVII	
ARTICLE AVII	
SCHEDULE A	28
SCHEDULE B	32
SCHEDULE C	33
SCHEDULE C	
SCHEDULE D	35
APPENDIX I	
Counselor Evaluation Rubric	37
APPENDIX II	
School Psychologist Evaluation Rubric	39
5 <b>6.1</b> 667	
APPENDIX III	
School Social Worker Evaluation Rubric	42
APPENDIX IV	50
Speech Language Pathologist Evaluation Rubric	52
APPENDIX V	
Occupational Therapist Evaluation Rubric	62
1	
APPENDIX VI	
Calendar	73
CDIEVANCE DEPORT FORM	7.4
GRIEVANCE REPORT FORM	
SICNATUDE DACE	76

#### **AGREEMENT**

This agreement is made and entered into as of July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2024, by and between the Board of Education of the Sparta Area Schools (SAS) hereinafter called the "Board" and the Sparta Education Association (SEA/MEA/NEA) hereinafter called the "Association".

#### WITNESSETH

The Board and the Association recognize and declare that providing a quality education for the children of Sparta Area Schools is their mutual aim and that the character of such education depends predominantly upon the quality and morals of the teaching service, and

The members of the teaching profession are particularly qualified to assist in curriculum matters designed to improve educational standards, and

WHEREAS the Board has a statutory obligation to bargain with the Association as the representative of its teaching personnel with respect to hours, wages, terms, and conditions of employment, and

WHEREAS the parties, following extended and deliberate professional negotiations, have reached certain understandings which they desire to memorialize and agree as follows:

### **ARTICLE I Recognition**

Section 1.1 - The Board hereby recognizes the Sparta Education Association, the Michigan Education Association, and the National Education Association (SEA/MEA/NEA) as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent as defined in Section Eleven of PA 379, of Public Acts of 1965, as amended, for all Association members who are employed by the Sparta Area Public Schools, including personnel on tenure or probation, social workers, school psychologists, speech pathologists, part-time ancillary staff members under full year contract employed or to be employed by the Board (whether or not assigned to a public school building). Such representation shall cover all personnel assigned to newly created positions except those that are supervisory as determined under PA 379.

- Section 1.1.A Such representation shall exclude supervisory, administrative, executive, office, and clerical employees, and all other non-teaching personnel.
- Section 1.1.B The term "teacher" when used hereinafter in this Agreement shall refer to all teachers and counselors eligible for tenure under the Tenure Act.
- Section 1.1.C Ancillary staff is defined as: Licensed staff not eligible to receive tenure under the Tenure Act: School Psychologists, Speech Therapists, School Social Workers, Dean of Students and Occupational Therapists.

Section 1.1.D - The Board agrees not to negotiate with or recognize any teachers' organization for negotiating purposes other than the Sparta Education Association (SEA/MEA/NEA) for the duration of this agreement.

### ARTICLE II Association Representation

Section 2.1 – The parties agree that being a dues paying member of the Association is strictly voluntary. All teachers who voluntarily elect to be a dues paying member of the Association shall pay dues directly to the Association.

Section 2.2 - Nothing contained herein shall be construed to deny or to restrict any teacher rights he/she may have under the Michigan General School Laws or applicable civil service laws and regulations. The rights granted to teachers hereunder shall be deemed to be in addition to those provided elsewhere.

### **ARTICLE III Board Rights**

Section 3.1 - In order to carry out its responsibility for the development and operation of educational programs providing the best possible educational opportunity for the Sparta Area School District consistent with community resources the Board retains and reserves unto itself all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in the Board by law including by way of illustration and not by way of limitation the following:

- A. The right to executive management and administrative control of the school system and its properties and facilities and activities of its employees.
- B. The right to hire all employees and subject to the provisions of the law to determine their qualifications and the conditions for their continued employment or their dismissal or demotion; to promote, and transfer all such employees.
- C. The right to establish grades and courses of instruction including special programs, and to provide for athletic, recreational and social events for students as deemed necessary or advisable by the Board.
- D. The right to decide upon the means and methods of instructions, the selection of textbooks and other teaching materials and the use of teaching aids.
- E. The right to determine class schedules, class size, the hours of instruction, duties, responsibility, and assignments of teachers.

Section 3.2 - The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, duties and responsibilities by the Board and the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practices in the furtherance thereof, shall be the exclusive prerogative of the Board except as otherwise limited by the express provision of this Agreement.

### **ARTICLE IV Teacher Rights**

- Section 4.1 The Board hereby agrees that every teacher as defined in Article I, Section 1.1, employed by the Board shall have the right to freely organize, join and support the Association for the purpose of engaging in negotiation for mutual aid and protection. The Board agrees that it will not discriminate against any teacher with respect to hours, wages, or any terms or conditions of employment by reason of his/her membership in the Association, his/her participation in any activities of the Association or collective professional negotiations with the Board, or his/her institution of any grievance, complaint or proceeding under this Agreement or otherwise with respect to any terms or conditions of employment.
- Section 4.2 The provisions of this Agreement and the wages, hours, terms and conditions of employment shall be applied without regard to race, creed, religion, color, national origin, age, sex, marital status, physical characteristics, or membership in or association with the activities of any employee organization.
- Section 4.3 Teachers shall be entitled to full rights of citizenship and no religious or political activities of any teacher outside of the school shall be grounds for any discipline or discrimination with respect to the professional employment of such teacher.

### ARTICLE V Sparta Education Association Rights

- Section 5.1 The SEA and its members shall have the right to use school building facilities at all reasonable hours for meetings upon clearance with the Administration. No teacher shall be prevented from wearing insignia, pins, or other identification of membership in the Association either on or off school premises. Bulletin boards, local telephone service, intercom service, interschool mail, and teacher mail boxes shall be made available to the SEA and its members according to established policy in effect at the signing of the Agreement.
- Section 5.2 The Board agrees to furnish to the SEA, as requested, a report of general fund receipts and disbursements, tentative budgetary requirements, allocations, and such other information as will assist the SEA in developing intelligent and accurate information which may be used by the SEA for the purpose of processing any grievance or of preparing for negotiations only.
- Section 5.3 The Board shall make available to the SEA, upon request, all fiscal, budgetary and tax information affecting the district which is normally available to the district residents. The SEA shall, whenever feasible, have the opportunity, in advance, to consult with the Board with respect thereto prior to general publication.
- Section 5.4 The Superintendent shall place on the agenda of a regular Board meeting and present any subject requested by the Sparta Education Association Executive Board if such a request is made in writing to the Superintendent at least one (1) week prior to the Board meeting.

#### **ARTICLE VI**

### **Cooperative Decision Making (in the School Improvement Process)**

Section 6.1 - Teachers will be involved in co-operative decision-making at both the building and district level for the purpose of school improvement, professional development, curriculum planning, and the introduction of new, innovative, or pilot programs. It is a process through which those individuals responsible for the implementation of a decision at the building and district level are actively and legitimately involved in the making of decisions. The School Improvement Process (resulting in co-operative decision making) will involve teachers, administrators, and other educational stakeholders in planning and problem-solving.

Section 6.2 - In implementing the School Improvement Process, the Board and Association agree that decision-making bodies and school improvement teams shall in no way intrude on the integrity of this agreement. In the event that any decision or action violates, contradicts, or is inconsistent with any provisions of this agreement, the terms of this agreement will prevail. However, the Board and Association recognize that changing circumstances and conditions may necessitate possible modification of certain provisions of this agreement. Accordingly the two parties agree to meet periodically to consider the decisions as a result of the School Improvement Process and how they affect this agreement. Any resulting modification of this agreement must be mutually agreed to in writing by the Board and Association.

The Board and Association recognize that not all decisions are appropriate to be made through the School Improvement Process. When a question arises as to the jurisdiction of a decision, the Association leadership and the Superintendent will cooperatively reach an agreement upon the level at which the decision is to be made.

Section 6.3 - The District School Improvement Team shall establish specific operating procedures for the School Improvement Process. These procedures shall be in force for the duration of this agreement and open for review at its expiration. These operating procedures will use the following principles as guidelines:

- A. All of the Building School Improvement Teams shall reasonably reflect and be representative of the various department, grades, areas, buildings, etc.
- B. The teacher members of the Building School Improvement Team shall be elected by the professional staff at a regular faculty meeting.
- C. Each teacher shall be a member of a particular strategic planning committee.
- D. The chairpersons of Building School Improvement Teams and Strategic Planning Committees shall be teachers.
- E. An effort will be made to use consensus, 100% of those present, in decisions or recommendations reached by all the bodies. However, if this is not possible, then at least two-thirds of those present must agree with the decision or recommendation.
- F. Any recommendations from a Building School Improvement Team to its building staff must receive the support of at least two-thirds of those present in order for a proposal to be sent to the

District School Improvement Team.

G. The Association shall have a representation on all bodies.

### ARTICLE VII Professional Compensation

- Section 7.1 The salaries of teachers covered by this Agreement are set forth in Appendix I, which is attached to and incorporated in this Agreement. Such salary schedule shall remain in effect during the term of this Agreement.
- Section 7.1.A Teachers with a bachelor's degree plus 18 hours on an approved master's degree program will be placed on the AB+18 scale.
- Sections 7.1.B Increments become effective at the beginning of each school year. Advancement on the salary schedule due to completion of degrees or required courses will be effective only at the beginning of either semester following the completion and submission of proof of such degree or required courses. (Any of the above completions coming prior to February 15 will be allowed at the beginning of the second semester.)
- Section 7.1.C All persons regularly employed on a part time basis shall receive compensation, fringe benefits, and credit on the salary schedule in proportion to their employment.
- Section 7.1.D Credit for previous experience will be based on evaluation of prior teaching experience and credit may be given by placing the new teacher on one (1) of the salary schedule steps as determined by the administration.
- Section 7.2 The salary schedule for a weekly teaching load is based on the School Calendar and weekly teaching hours as stated in Article VIII. Such hours will remain in effect (as stated in 8.2) during the term of this Agreement.
- Section 7.3 Teachers individually contracted for extra duty assignments as set forth in the Appendix, which is attached to and incorporated in this Agreement, shall be compensated in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement without deviation. This provision shall not prohibit an employee from volunteering for an assignment nor shall it prohibit the Board from accepting a volunteer providing the position being volunteered for is not listed in schedules B or C in the Appendix.
- Section 7.3.A In addition to the basic teacher salary as provided above, there shall be paid the specific percentage of the teacher's salary for the following assignments: See Schedule B and C. (All extra reimbursement will be paid in a lump sum upon completion of the extra-curricular assignment.) Compensation for coaching new sports shall be determined with a comparable sport.

Credit for previous experience will be based on an administrative evaluation of previous experience and credit may be given by placing the new head coach on one (1) of the salary schedule steps as determined by the administration.

Section 7.4 - Teachers requested in the course of their work, to drive personal automobiles from one school building to another shall receive .40 per mile. The same reimbursement shall be given for use of personal cars for field trips or other business of the district upon approval of the Superintendent. Meals

shall be reimbursed up to \$17.00 per day when attending approved conferences or conventions. A teacher wishing to attend a conference at his/her own expense may do so upon the approval of the Superintendent.

Section 7.5 - A teacher engaged during the school day in negotiating in behalf of the Association with any representative of the Board or participating in any grievance procedure, including arbitration, shall be released from regular duties without loss of salary.

Section 7.6 - Upon approval of the Superintendent, an officer or member of the Association may be released from regular duties without loss of salary, for the purpose of participating in Association business. Other representatives may be released for the above activities, with loss of pay upon approval of the Superintendent. A minimum of five (5) days shall be approved.

Section 7.7 - The President of the Association shall be released as needed, without loss of salary, from regular duties during times of the day when he or she is not directly involved with students.

Section 7.8 - Each teacher's salary will be compensated in twenty-six (26) equal bi-weekly pay periods. If employment is discontinued, at any time, the last paycheck will be prorated for the portion of the school year worked. All benefits subsidized by the Board of Education will be prorated for the portion of the school year worked. Payroll deductions authorized by the employee will be discontinued as of the date employment was terminated. Benefits for teachers going on leaves of absence will be subsidized on a prorated basis for the year according to the amount of the completion of the individual contract.

Section 7.9 - Each teacher completing graduate hours beyond his/her Master's Degree shall receive credit on the Salary Schedule provided such hours are within the curriculum or program of the Sparta Area Schools. All courses for teaching credit on the Salary Schedule and for course reimbursement must be pre-approved by the Superintendent. Pre-approval forms are to be completed by the teacher and submitted to the Superintendent's Office. All graduate hours earned prior to January 1, 1980, will be "grandfathered" and applied to the M.A. plus schedules. Undergraduate and/or other courses not meeting the above criteria may be approved by the Superintendent.

Section 7.10 - The teaching staff and administration will cooperate in covering the classes of absent teachers where the District is unable to secure a per diem substitute. Building principals, administration and the SEA building leadership will create a plan for each building to address instances in which there are no volunteers to substitute by September 15. If no agreement is found by September 15, the SEA President or designee and the Superintendent or designee will meet to agree to the building plan by October 15.

Teachers who agree or are assigned to substitute during the day shall be compensated, at their option, in one of the following ways:

- A) Teachers shall be compensated at \$25/hour an hour is defined as any time period for more than 30 minutes but no more than 60 minutes. Teachers who substitute for increments of 30 minutes or less will be granted a half hour of compensation (\$12.50).
- B) A2 credits Teachers can earn 1-A2 credit for subbing for a class period of more than 30 minutes but no more than 60 minutes. Teachers may earn ½-A2 credit for subbing for increments of 30 minutes or less. Six (6) A2 credits equate to one full day (personal day).

All compensation and A2 credits earned must be approved by the building administration. Any personal days accrued under this section shall be subject to the same usage requirements as outlined in article 12.4,

except that it will not be chargeable against sick leave. Personal days accrued under this section and carried over to the following year shall be limited in number to four (4) per participating teacher at a given time. In addition, the days may not be used during the first or last full week of school.

### B. Team Member

If a team member substitutes for another team member during a teaming hour, due to unusual circumstances, as asked by the administration, he/she shall be compensated at the hourly rate of \$25.00 or one (1) hour compensation time, accumulating to a maximum of four (4) days per year. The remaining time shall be paid at an hourly rate of \$25.00.

Section 7.11 - Detention supervision (if an Association teacher) shall be paid at an hourly rate of \$25.00 and Homebound teacher (not to include KISD personnel hired to perform this function): \$25.00 per hour.

Section 7.12 – Non-contract pay outside the regularly contracted hours will be compensated at \$200 (\$100 for half day) for professional development and professional work, i.e., curriculum, assessment, lesson and content development or summer counselor services/work.

### ARTICLE VIII Teaching Loads, Hours, and Assignments

Section 8.1 - Each teacher K-12 shall be provided with 225 minutes or an average of 45 minutes per day to be used for preparation, conference, and evaluation. Part-time teachers would have this total time prorated per their FTE. The Building School Improvement (BSI) Teams, as part of the school improvement process, will have input on the schedules at each of their buildings.

Section 8.2 - Teachers will work 7.5 continuous hours per day between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. Exceptions to this time frame include regularly scheduled staff meetings and parent-teacher conferences. The Building School Improvement Team in compliance with Article VI of this agreement should generate the agendas for the aforementioned meetings. After hour staff meetings should be limited to no more than three (3) per month and no more than one and a quarter (1.25) hours in duration. One (1) of the three (3) meetings will be designated as a "protected" staff meeting. The "protected" staff meeting agenda will be mutually agreed upon by the Building School Improvement Team and the building administration. The remaining staff meetings' agendas will be determined cooperatively by grade/content/departments and the building administration.

Section 8.2.A. - The elementary schools Ridgeview and Appleview will:

Every effort will be made to maintain art, music and physical education in order to provide teachers with preparation, conference, and evaluation time. Preparation, conference and evaluation time will be equitable for all teachers. In the event a teacher substitutes for art, music, or physical education during their scheduled planning time, they will be compensated in accordance with Article VII, Section 7.10.

Section 8.2.B. - Should the district finances dictate a need to reduce staff and/or programs, the Association and the Board agree to negotiate changes to Section 8.2.A, Section 8.2.B, and Section 8.2.C. Potential schedule changes at all levels will be based on the academic needs of students K-12 in relation to available funding.

Section 8.3 - The setting of the daily teaching schedule and the teachers' work days is the responsibility of the Administration. Released time may be made available during the working day by the Administration for faculty meetings, division, and departmental meetings. All teachers are free to leave Friday and days preceding holidays five minutes after students are dismissed.

Section 8.3.A - The daily teaching schedule shall satisfy the minimum state mandated hours.

Section 8.4 - All teachers shall receive a duty-free lunch period of forty-five (45) minutes. As compensation for a reduced lunch period, due to a mutually agreed change in daily schedule, teachers shall receive an equal number of minutes deducted from the beginning and/or end of the workday.

Section 8.5 - No teacher shall be required to engage in fund raising activities.

Section 8.6 - Provisions for parent-teacher conferences in the elementary, middle school, and the high schools will be included in each of the building calendars.

### **ARTICLE IX Teaching Conditions**

Section 9.1 - Class size - The Board of Education has the statutory duty to educate all children within the boundaries of the school district. The student-teacher ratio is an important aspect of an educational program. The number of students a teacher is required to instruct has a direct bearing upon the amount of work required of the individual teacher. Therefore, the Parties agree that the size of the individual classes shall be given careful consideration and that small class size in early elementary grades (K-2) and in remedial classes is desirable. Therefore, the following class sizes have been agreed upon.

### **CONTRACT LIMIT**

DK/TI	22
Kindergarten -	22
1 -	24
2 -	26
3 -	26
4 -	28
5 -	28
K-5 Art -	32
K-5 Music -	36
K-5 P.E.	36
6, 7, and 8 CORE classes	29
6-8 Health (TCB)	34
6-8 Computers -	30, or equal to number of computers in room
Instrumental/Vocal Music	Unlimited
Designated Remedial Classes	3 24
HIGH SCHOOL	

30

All Classes -

except,

P.E. - 40 HS Health - 34 Life skills - 30 Yearbook - 30

Computers - 30, or equal to number of computers in room

Instrumental/Vocal Music Unlimited

Designated Remedial Classes 24

At no time shall a class exceed the reasonable physical limits of the classroom, lab facility, or number of work stations available and equipped for students.

Section 9.2 - Excess numbers (above the Contract Limits) will be paid per child x membership days as follows:

Elementary Grades K- 5 \$3.25

Secondary Grades 6 - 12 \$0.90

Music and physical education limits apply throughout K-12. It is understood that October 1 of each school year will be the starting date for calculating excess costs. Any student enrolled as of October 1 will be retroactively calculated to date of entry.

To count as an overload, a student must be in attendance three days prior to being retroactively counted as an overload (back to the first day of the student's enrollment.)

All overload payment requests must be initially submitted to the school office by the end of the following month, e.g., the September overload form must be to the school office by October 31. If it is not received by the end of the following month, the overload payment is forfeited.

Section 9.3 - The Board shall make available to each school, when and where possible, adequate lunchroom, rest room and lavatory facilities exclusively for teacher use, adequate parking facilities, where possible, and the availability of telephones for local calls.

Section 9.4 - When emergency conditions necessitate the cancellation of school, information of such closing will be broadcast on Grand Rapids radio stations and teachers need not report. In the event emergency conditions force the cancellation of schools on a semester ending exam day, in which a ½ student day and full staff records day is canceled, the schedule will be instituted on the next day school is in session unless otherwise agreed to by the Administration and SEA.

Section 9.5 - Inclusion of special education students into regular education classrooms is part of the Least Restrictive Environment Philosophy. Sparta Area Schools supports this philosophy and will promulgate a group of procedures to delineate the teachers' rights and responsibilities in regard to these least restrictive placements.

### ARTICLE X

#### **Vacancies - Promotions - Transfer**

Section 10.1 – The following provisions apply to non-tenure eligible ancillary staff only. Tenure eligible teacher assignment into vacancies, promotions and transfers to new assignments shall be governed by Board policy and corresponding administrative guidelines. Vacancies occurring within the bargaining unit as described in the recognition provision, including newly created positions, shall be posted on a designated bulletin board in each building along with a copy of such posting to the Sparta Education Association President. Prior to being filled, positions, as above described, will be posted at least five (5) work days during the school year and fourteen (14) calendar days during the summer through July 31. During the month of August, vacancies will be posted for seven (7) calendar days.

Section 10.1.A - A vacancy shall be defined for purposes of this Agreement as a position presently unfilled, one currently filled but which will be open in the future, or a new position that is currently not in existence.

Section 10.1.B - To insure adequate notification of posted vacancies during the summer, the Board will inform teachers of the following procedure at the last required meeting of each school year:

Ancillary staff members interested in applying for vacancies and/or transfers shall express their desire on their intent forms. Intent forms are used for the specific purpose of planning future staffing and are not considered applications for transfers or vacancies. Ancillary staff members may call the personnel office for information on postings.

Ancillary staff members who officially apply for posted vacancies will be contacted in a timely manner by phone, e-mail, and /or first class mail.

It is the responsibility of all interested teachers to supply the personnel office with current addresses and phone numbers for contact.

Section 10.1.C - Interested Ancillary staff members may apply for such positions by submitting a written application to the Personnel Office. Ancillary staff members who have filed an application shall be reviewed along with outside applicants. Said positions will be filled on the basis of the experience, competency, and qualifications of the applicant. When experience, competency, and qualifications are substantially equal, the applicant with greater seniority shall be given preference.

Section 10.2 - Requests by an Ancillary staff member for a transfer to a different building or position may be made at any time. Such requests shall be made in writing to the Personnel Office with a copy to the Sparta Education Association President. The application shall set forth the school, grade or position sought, and applicant's qualifications. Applicants must contact the Personnel Office during the last month of each semester to update their request. The record of transfer, the transfer request, and all evaluative data pertaining thereto shall be made a part of the teacher's personnel file. No Ancillary staff member will be discriminated against because of a request to transfer.

Section 10.2.A - Receipt of all applications shall be acknowledged by the Personnel Office within five (5) working days.

Section 10.2.B - Since transfers of Ancillary staff members from one school to another can be disruptive to the educational process and may interfere with optimum Ancillary staff member's performance, the Board agrees that unrequested transfers are to be minimized. Prior to the effectuation of an involuntary transfer, the Superintendent or designee shall provide the affected Ancillary staff member with the reason

or reasons for the transfer.

Section 10.3 - Any Ancillary staff member who shall be transferred to a supervisory or executive position and shall later return to an Ancillary staff member status shall be entitled to resume such rights as he/she may have had under this Agreement as an Ancillary staff member prior to such transfer. Time served in a supervisory or executive position shall be credited as time worked for placement on the salary schedule.

Section 10.4 - Job sharing is defined as an Ancillary staff member initiated employment arrangement where two (2) Ancillary staff members, through a job share proposal, have agreed to share one (1) full time position in a manner which meets the educational objectives of the school and the district and has the approval of the principal and the Superintendent or designate.

Section 10.4.A - Any Ancillary staff member interested in establishing a job sharing arrangement shall make written application to the building principal and the Superintendent or designate. In each instance of job sharing, the employees involved will be advised of the terms of the arrangement and of the terms of recall and termination of such an arrangement. All job shares will be reviewed by the administration on an annual basis. Should the review determine that the job share is not meeting the educational objectives of the school or district, a plan of improvement will be initiated. If the goals established in the plan for improvement are not met by the end of the next school year, administration reserves the right to either continue the plan for another year or recommend termination of the job share. In the event that one or both of the employee's contract(s) is non-renewed, the job share will be terminated consistent with Section 10.4.E.

Proposals for a job share position may be made only by currently employed Ancillary staff members. Upon the Superintendent's approval, a written proposal regarding hours of work, job duties, in-service, conferences, and division of responsibilities shall be created for Board approval.

Section 10.4.B - No job sharing shall be permitted if the arrangement will in any way adversely affect the seniority, layoff or recall rights of another Ancillary staff member, including those on layoff. In such situations, the adversely affected Ancillary staff member (s) and the Association may, in writing, elect to waive his or her seniority rights for that specific situation. Failure of said Ancillary staff member (s) or the Association to waive such rights, shall nullify the proposed job share and shall in no way result in adverse effects upon the refusing teacher.

The fraction of an Ancillary staff member's job share shall not be reduced unless otherwise agreed to by the Ancillary staff member. In the event that the needs of the school require a reduction in the fraction of that assignment, the Ancillary staff member will be reassigned pursuant to Article XI of this Agreement.

Ancillary staff members should enter into a job sharing assignment for the complete school year.

Section 10.4.C - Compensation shall be covered by Article VII, Section 7.1C of this agreement.

Section 10.4.D - Seniority shall be covered by Article XI, Section 11.1.C of this agreement.

Section 10.4.E - Ancillary staff members wishing to terminate job sharing shall do so only at the end of the school year and if a position is available.

When the job sharing arrangement is terminated, the partner who formerly held the position retains the same. If neither partner held the position, both will be reassigned pursuant to Article XI of this

### Agreement.

An Ancillary staff member who is unable to continue to the end of the school year for medical reasons or a leave of absence, the following procedure shall apply:

- 1. Remaining job share Ancillary staff member may choose to go full time;
- 2. An internal job posting shall be done;
- 3. An external job posting shall be done; or
- 4. Remaining Ancillary staff members shall be assigned to full time with a minimum of ten (10) working days' notice.

## ARTICLE XI Seniority of Personnel Reduction and Recall of Ancillary Staff Members

Section 11.1 - No later than sixty (60) days following the ratification of this Agreement, and by every September 30th thereafter, the Board shall prepare a seniority list. Seniority shall be defined as the length of unbroken service since the initial date of hire as a teacher employee of the Sparta Area Schools. Seniority is accrued only as a member of the bargaining unit as described in the recognition provision. All teachers shall be ranked on the list in order of their effective date of hire wherever documentation is possible. In circumstances of more than one (1) individual having the same effective date of employment, all individuals so affected, will participate in a drawing to determine placement on the seniority list. The Sparta Education Association and teachers so affected will be notified, in writing, of the date, place, and time of drawing. The drawing shall be conducted openly and at a time and place that will reasonably allow affected teachers and the SEA representatives to be in attendance.

- Section 11.1.A The seniority list shall be published and posted in all buildings of the district by October 15th of each school year. Any revisions and updates of the seniority list shall also be published and posted as they are made. A copy of the seniority list and subsequent revisions and updates shall be forwarded to the SEA President and posted in each building by the administration.
- Section 11.1.B All seniority is lost when employment is severed from Sparta Area Schools by resignation, retirement, or discharge; however, seniority is retained if severance of employment is due to a layoff.
- Section 11.1.C A part-time teacher shall be granted seniority on a prorated basis according to the daily load of the building in which they teach.
- Section 11.1.D A teacher on leave of absence shall neither lose nor accumulate seniority while on such leave.
- Section 11.1.E Seniority shall be determined by the length of continuous teacher service K-12, from the date of hire or a date established by procedure in Section 11.1.
- Section 11.2 Layoff shall be defined as a necessary reduction in the work force due to decreased student enrollment or shortage of revenue requiring revision of the curriculum, exclusive of resignation, retirement or death. This section shall apply to non-tenure eligible ancillary staff only. The reduction and recall process for tenure eligible teachers shall be governed by Board policy and the corresponding

administrative guidelines. In the event of a need to lay off ancillary staff due to decreased student enrollment or a revenue shortage, the Board will have the right to lay off individual ancillary staff members by written notice at least sixty (60) calendar days prior to the end of either semester. Should layoff occur, the Board will honor seniority for job retention to the extent allowed by law. Preference to remain in the current assignment also will be honored to the extent that said preference does not cause the layoff of another ancillary staff whose only recourse for continued employment is to occupy an assignment held by an ancillary staff member with higher seniority. If this situation occurs, the higher seniority ancillary staff member may be assigned to another position for which he/she is certified and qualified. If programs are restored, the ancillary staff member forced to vacate his/her assignment shall have the option of returning to that assignment.

- Section 11.2.A Recognizing the need to maintain stability for students, mid-year layoffs will be implemented only when a shortage of revenue is severe.
- Section 11.2.A.1 The Board shall develop, considering input from the Sparta Education Association and ancillary staff member, the educational program for the forthcoming school year. Whenever possible, notice and publication of programs and positions affected by layoff shall be posted prior to implementation of layoffs.
- Section 11.2.A.2 Beginning with the first name on the seniority list, each ancillary staff member shall be placed in an assignment in the following order of priority as certified and \*qualified:
- Section 11.2.A.2.a Current grade/department; voluntary transfer if agreed upon by the ancillary staff member, Administration, and Association; or assignment per 11.2; if not available then,
- \*\*Section 11.2.A.2.b Current grade/department in another building; if not available then,
- \*\*Section 11.2.A.2.c Another grade/department in their current building; if not available then,
- \*\*Section 11.2.A.2.d Another grade/department in another building,
- \*\*Section 11.2.A.2.e If no vacancy is available in any grade/department for which the individual is certified and \*qualified in any building, the individual will be laid off. Written notification in accordance with the time lines herein provided will be forwarded to the affected ancillary staff member(s) and the Sparta Education Association President.
- \*\*If a choice of building, grade or department is possible, the ancillary staff member's choice shall be honored.
- \*Section 11.2.A.3 Qualification for placement in position shall be defined as holding the appropriate certificate from the State of Michigan and/or all other qualifications as defined by State or Federal Laws.
- Section 11.2.A.4 The provisions of Article XI will prevail over other Sections of this Agreement when the Reduction and/or Recall process is in effect.
- Section 11.3 Laid off ancillary staff members shall be recalled to the first vacancy for which they are certified and \*qualified and in reverse order of layoff. Laid off ancillary staff members shall be recalled within a reasonable time following the resolution of circumstances which precipitated the reduction of

staff. If the position that the ancillary staff member is recalled to is more or less than the laid off position, the ancillary staff member may turn down the recall and retain lay off status as provided in Section 11.3.A. \*(Refer to Section 11.2.A.3 for definition of qualified)

- Section 11.3.A Notifications of recall shall be in writing with a copy to Sparta Education Association President. The notification shall be sent by certified mail, restricted delivery, to the laid off ancillary staff member's last known address. It shall be the responsibility of each ancillary staff member to notify the Board in writing of any change in address. Recalled ancillary staff members must notify the Board of acceptance or denial of recall within five (5) days of receipt of notification of recall. Failure to do so will result in termination.
- Section 11.3.B A laid off ancillary staff member shall be considered laid off until he/she is reinstated in the Sparta Area Schools or terminates employment provided that the employee yearly updates, by certified mail on or before June 30 of each year, his/her wish to remain on lay off status.
- Section 11.3.C Recalled ancillary staff members shall be entitled to all accrued rights and benefits obtained during employment at the time of their notice of layoff. The need to use such benefits shall not be reason to delay or obstruct recall to a position under these provisions.
- Section 11.3.D All ancillary staff members subject to layoff shall receive full fringe benefits, as provided within this Agreement, prorated on the portion of the current school year completed.
- Section 11.3.E A laid off ancillary staff member may continue his/her health, dental and life insurance benefits during the period of layoff by paying monthly the normal per subscriber group rate premium for such benefits to the Board.
- Section 11.3.F During a period of impending layoffs, the Board agrees to consider all requests for voluntary layoffs from those ancillary staff members who make such requests.
- Section 11.3.F.1 The option to exercise voluntary layoff by the ancillary staff member shall be done on an annual basis.
- Section 11.3.G Ancillary staff members completing the period of voluntary layoff will be assigned to their previous grade/department assignments.

### ARTICLE XII Leave Pay and Leave of Absence

#### Section 12.1 -

Teachers will receive eight (8) work days available as sick leave at the beginning of the school year with unlimited accumulation. In addition, Teachers will receive four (4) personal days to be used within the school year. Personal/A2 days must be requested 48 hours in advance or the administrator may deny them based on sub availability. Any unused personal days will be rolled into the Teacher's sick bank for the following school year. Additionally, any retiring teacher that has leftover personal days will have those days converted to sick days prior to payout.

Section 12.1.A - teachers on unpaid leave (does not apply to FMLA leaves), or terminating employment

will have leave days prorated to the percent of contract days actually worked.

Section 12.2 - Any teacher whose personal illness extends beyond the period compensated under Section 12.1 shall be granted a leave of absence without pay for such time as is necessary for complete recovery from illness. This leave extension shall be reviewed annually. Upon return from leave, a teacher shall be assigned to the same position, if available, or a substantially equivalent position.

Section 12.3 - Upon recommendation of the Superintendent, the Board may, at Board expense, require a teacher to submit to a mental or physical examination by a mutually agreed upon appropriate specialist to determine whether involuntary sick leave is warranted. (The mutual agreement will be between the Board and the Association.) The Board expense will be that not covered by health insurance.

Section 12.4 - Leaves of absence with pay, chargeable against the teacher's allowance, shall be granted for the following reasons:

- A. Personal illness
- B. Illness in \*immediate family
- C. Upon administrative approval, time necessary for attendance at the funeral services of persons whose relationship to the teacher warrants such attendance.
- D. Personal leave days may not be used on teacher in-service days, except with the approval of the Superintendent. Personal leave days may be used on teacher in-service days for the purpose of attending professional development activities related to the teacher's district responsibilities or a documented emergency. Personal days may not be used during the first or last week of school, or to extend a school break/vacation without prior approval of the Superintendent.
- E. Matters of an emergency or business nature that cannot be accomplished on other than a school day will be allowed at the discretion of the Superintendent. These days may be requested only after personal leave time outlined in Section 12.4D has been exhausted.
- F. Personal days and 7.10.A.2 days may be used to a maximum of three consecutive work days without prior approval by the Superintendent.

Section 12.5 - Leaves of absence with pay, not chargeable against the teacher's allowance, shall be granted for the following reasons:

A. A maximum of five (5) days per school year for each death in the \*immediate family. Additional leave may be allowed under Section 12.4 of this Article.

\*Spouse, children, mother, father, mother-in-law, father-in-law, sister, brother, grandparents, grandchildren, or any other member of the family who clearly has the same relationship as these as determined by the Superintendent.

- B. Absence when a teacher is called for jury service. Any pay received for jury service will be submitted to the district. The teacher will receive reimbursement for mileage.
- C. Court appearances as a witness in any case connected with the teacher's employment or the school

- or whenever the teacher is subpoenaed to attend any proceedings. Any monies reimbursed to the teacher, minus expenses, shall be reimbursed to the school district up to the teachers per diem rate.
- D. Time necessary to take the selective service physical examination for draft classification.
- Section 12.6 Leaves of absence without pay, not to exceed one year, shall be granted upon application for the following purposes: (Application may be made for renewal.)
- A. A sabbatical leave may be granted according to the provisions of the School Code. A teacher on sabbatical leave under this Agreement shall receive full insurance benefits for that year.
- B. Family Medical Leave Act of 1993 All provisions of the Family Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA) will be adhered to in accordance with the current provisions of the Act. Information outlining the current FMLA provisions will be made available upon request in the Personnel Office.
- Serious Illness/Medical Certification: Requests for paid leave for a serious health condition for an employee or others as outlined in FMLA will require medical certification as outlined in the administration of the FMLA manual. Upon return from FMLA leave, the teacher shall be restored to his/her former position. (This is defined as 12 work weeks.)
- C. A career exploration leave, not to exceed one year, may be granted with the approval of the Superintendent with the understanding that at the end of the leave, the teacher either returns to a position assigned by the Administration or he/she submits a letter of resignation. The teacher must submit a letter of intent to return by April 15th of the year of leave. Failure to submit an intent letter by April 15th will result in termination.
- Section 12.7 A teacher shall be granted a child care leave commencing at a date mutually agreed upon by the teacher and administration. This leave will be granted as outlined by the provisions of FMLA (see 12.6.B.). If a teacher has accrued sick days, these days may be used for paid leave to run concurrently within the 12 weeks provided by FMLA. If a teacher requires additional time off due to a serious health condition of the teacher or child, and if this teacher has accrued sick days, this paid leave time will be extended with a doctor's certificate. The teacher shall be entitled to return from such leave without loss of placement on the salary schedule.
- Section 12.7.A. Should a need arise to extend this leave beyond the timelines allowed under FMLA, this extension may be granted by the recommendation from the Superintendent to the Board.
- Section 12.8 Military leaves of absence shall be granted to any teacher who shall be inducted or shall enlist for military duty to any branch of the armed forces of the United States in accordance with the Veteran's Reemployment Acts Law.
- Section 12.9 An ancillary staff member, upon return from unpaid child care leave shall be assigned to the same position, if available, or to a position of the like nature and status. The Superintendent shall review requests for leave extension annually. Assignments for tenure eligible teaching staff returning from a leave of absence is governed by Board policy and corresponding administrative guidelines.
- Section 12.9.A An ancillary staff member, upon return from a sabbatical, shall be restored to his/her

former position, subject to the conditions of Section 11.2. Assignments for tenure eligible teaching staff returning from sabbatical is governed by Board policy and corresponding administrative guidelines.

Section 12.9.B - Any period spent on sabbatical leave or military service shall be treated as time taught for purpose of the salary schedule and seniority as set forth in Schedule A of the Appendix of this Agreement.

Section 12.10 - Short periods of time off without pay for personal reasons may be granted at the discretion of the Superintendent of Schools. Pay shall be deducted for each day lost, based upon the number of teacher workdays.

#### Section 12.11

- 12.11.A A teacher who retires with fifteen (15) or more years of service in Sparta Area Schools, and provides official notification to the Superintendent prior to March 1, will receive terminal pay of \$75/day for his/her unused sick leave, with a cap of 225 days.
- 12.11.B A teacher who retires with fifteen (15) or more years of service in Sparta Area Schools, and provides official notification to the Superintendent prior to May 1, will receive terminal pay of \$65/day for his/her unused sick leave, with a cap of 225 days.
- 12.11.C A teacher who retires with fifteen (15) or more years of service in Sparta Area Schools, and provides official notification to the Superintendent after May 1, will receive terminal pay of \$55/day for his/her unused sick leave, with a cap of 225 days. Exceptions will be considered by the Superintendent if an emergency situation arises.
- Section 12.12 The Superintendent may approve visitation at other schools and attendance at educational conferences or conventions, including Association meetings.
- Section 12.13 A teacher who misses six (6) or fewer days due to personal/family illness or personal/A2 use will receive an attendance bonus based on the scale below:
  - No absences for personal/family illness/A2 \$600
  - One (1) or two (2) absences for personal/family illness/A2 \$500
  - Three (3) or four (4) absences for personal/family illness/A2 \$400
  - Five (5) or six (6) absences for personal/family illness/A2 \$300

### ARTICLE XIII Evaluation of Ancillary Staff

Section 13.1 – The following sections apply to non-tenure eligible staff only. The evaluation process for tenure eligible teaching staff shall be governed by Board Policy and the corresponding administrative guidelines.

All monitoring or observations, including the use of closed circuit television, audio systems, and similar devices when used for ancillary staff evaluation, shall be conducted openly with the full knowledge of the ancillary staff. The administration must deal openly and on a continuing basis with perceived problems

concerning ancillary staff performance. That criterion outlined on the evaluation form and standards of measurement used must be shared with the ancillary staff by the administration at a meeting. Any ancillary staff missing said meeting will be responsible for obtaining the criteria and standards of measure from the building administrator.

- Section 13.2 Evaluations of ancillary staff shall be conducted by the ancillary staff 's immediate supervisor or an administrator working in the same building. An ancillary staff or the building administrator may request such evaluation to be conducted by a central office administrator. The request will be granted upon mutual agreement between the Association and Superintendent.
- Section 13.3 The work performance of all ancillary staff shall be evaluated in writing. The length of a planned observation will be determined at the pre-observation conference by mutual agreement.
- Section 13.4 The principal (evaluator) will hold a personal conference with the ancillary staff within five (5) days after each observation for the purpose of discussing the ancillary staff's work performance. During this conference the ancillary staff and evaluator will mutually agree on the date for reviewing the written evaluation. This review will occur within three (3) weeks of the conference. All observations must be completed one (1) week prior to spring break.
- Section 13.5 With the completion of a satisfactory evaluation, the ancillary staff will develop an enrichment plan. The ancillary staff may work alone or with one or more other colleagues. The enrichment plan must be based on professional growth with benefit to students. The plan will include how it will be monitored and evaluated.

The success or failure of the enrichment plan will not be a criterion for evaluations. However, good faith or lack of good faith effort to carry out the enrichment plan will be noted on the next formal evaluation.

Section 13.6 - A copy of the written evaluation shall be given to the ancillary staff at the final evaluation conference. A copy would then be signed indicating completion of the conference and returned to the administrator. In the event that the ancillary staff feel his/her evaluation was incomplete or unjust, within ten (10) days following the final conference, the ancillary staff may put his/her objections in writing and have them attached to the evaluation report of the principal to be placed in his/her personnel file. All evaluations shall be based upon the criteria as outlined in the evaluation form contained in the contract. All unsatisfactory work performance will be documented.

Section 13.7 - In the event that an administrator indicates an area(s) unsatisfactory in an ancillary staff's work performance, the administrator will allow reasonable time for correcting the deficiencies and prescribe a written plan of assistance using the following procedure to assist the teacher:

- A. Specific behaviors representing the deficiencies will be clearly stated.
- B. Specific strategies for overcoming the deficiencies will be stated.
- C. The expectations of the administrator will be stated using measurable criteria so that both the ancillary staff and administrator recognize if/when the deficiencies is corrected.
- D. During the time given for correcting the deficiencies the administrator will monitor and discuss progress with the ancillary staff on a regular basis.

- E. When the procedure for correcting the deficiencies has been completed for an ancillary staff member, the administrator will place in the file a letter stating such, with a copy to the individual ancillary staff.
- F. In subsequent observation and evaluation reports, failure to again note specific deficiencies shall be interpreted to mean that the ancillary staff has made adequate improvement.
- Section 13.8 The content of an adverse evaluation of ancillary staff performance shall not be considered subject to the grievance provision. Only violations of the procedures are open to grievance.

Section 13.9 - The evaluation forms for ancillary staff are enclosed in the appendices. By mutual agreement of the Board and the Association, the contents of the form may be modified or altered, if necessary.

See Appendices 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 for evaluation forms.

### ARTICLE XIV Teacher Protection

- Section 14.1 Good order and discipline is necessary for effective teaching. Each teacher is responsible for maintaining such an atmosphere in each of his/her classes. The Board recognizes that, through its administrative staff, it will support its teachers in taking actions to maintain proper classroom order.
- Section 14.1.A If, in a teacher's judgment, it appears that a particular student requires the attention of special counselors, social workers, law enforcement personnel, physicians or other professional persons, a teacher will consult with the administrative staff in which full particulars are put in writing, with a copy going to each of the two parties. Thereafter, reasonable steps will be taken by the administrative staff to assist in relieving the teacher of responsibility with respect to said student.
- Section 14.1.B After consultation with the administrative staff in which full particulars are put in writing, with a copy going to each of the two parties, a teacher may exclude a student from class when the grossness of the offense, the persistence of the misbehavior, or the disruptive effect of the violation makes the continued presence of the student detrimental to maintaining proper classroom order and discipline. If no action is taken by the building level administrative staff within five (5) school days, the teacher may appeal to the Superintendent to resolve the problem concerning the student's exclusion.
- Section 14.1.C A teacher may use such reasonable force as is necessary to protect himself/herself from attack or to prevent injury to another teacher, student, administrator, or other school employee.
- Section 14.2 Any case of assault upon a teacher while in pursuit of his/her employment or any complaint or suit against a teacher as a result of any action taken by the teacher while in pursuit of his/her employment, shall be promptly reported to the Board or its designated representative. The Board will promptly provide legal counsel to advise the teacher of his/her rights and obligations with respect to such assault, complaint, or suit.
- Section 14.2.A If any complaint or suit against a teacher as a result of any action taken by the teacher while in pursuit of his/her employment requires the teacher to hire legal counsel for his/her defense, the Board shall provide the opportunity for the teacher to receive an advance of his earnings accumulated up

to that time.

Section 14.3 - Any employee who is absent due to injury or illness compensable under the Michigan Worker's Compensation Law, shall receive the difference between the disability wage benefit and his/her regular wage. The amount of regular wages received will be based upon the teacher's accumulated sick leave and charged prorated against such sick leave accumulation.

Section 14.3.A - Time lost by a teacher because of injury arising out of assault upon said teacher while in pursuit of his/her employment will not be charged against the teacher's sick leave allowance.

Section 14.3.B - The Board shall reimburse a teacher for damage or destruction, by a student, of the teacher's clothing or personal property in his/her classroom not covered by the teacher's insurance while the teacher is on duty or in a job related function.

Section 14.4 - Any complaints by a parent or student directed toward a teacher shall be called to the teacher's attention immediately before any judgment is made or action taken involving such teacher. If a complaint is put in writing and is placed in the teacher's personal or personnel file, the teacher will have an opportunity to add comments and be provided a copy of the complaint.

Section 14.4.A - If a complaint by a parent or student is lodged against a teacher to a Central Administrator or Board of Education member, the Administrator or Board member shall direct the parent or student to the building administrator.

Section 14.5 - A bargaining unit member shall be entitled to have present a representative of the Association during any meeting which leads to disciplinary action. When a request for such representation is made, no action shall be taken with respect to the teacher until such representation of the Association is present. Such representation must be present within twenty-four (24) hours following the request by the Administration.

Section 14.6 - Should disciplinary action likely occur at a given meeting, the teacher shall be advised immediately of said possibility and be advised of the right to representation under this provision of the Agreement.

Section 14.7 - Each teacher shall have the right upon request, to review the contents of his/her own personnel or personal file. A representative of the Association may, at the teacher's request, accompany the teacher in his/her review. This review must be made in the presence of the administrator responsible for the safekeeping of such a file.

Section 14.8 - Each teacher's personal or personnel file shall contain the following items of information:

- A. Medical information if pertinent
- B. All teacher evaluation reports
- C. A copy of the teaching certificate
- D. Transcript of academic records
- E. Tenure recommendation
- F. Layoff and recall notices
- G. Application and resume
- H. Criminal Record Check (as provided by law)
- I. Letter of Hire by the Board of Education

### J. Request of transfer

Section 14.9 - Documents - Material placed in the teacher's personal or personnel file of an adverse nature requires that the teacher have an opportunity to examine and file a response before said material shall become a part of the file.

When the process for correcting areas mentioned as needs improvement or unsatisfactory has been completed, the administration will place in the file a letter stating such, with a copy to the individual teacher.

### ARTICLE XV Grievance

Section 15.1 - Any grievance is defined as a disagreement on the part of any teacher, group of teachers, or the Association in connection with wages, hours, terms, and conditions of employment as defined in this Agreement. Such grievances shall be limited to the provisions of this Agreement. The SEA/MEA/NEA will designate a representative(s) for the purpose of processing grievances in accordance with his/her duty of representation as expressed under Section Seven and Eleven of PA 379 as amended.

The Association will not pursue any grievance without the expressed written approval of the teacher or group of teachers involved.

In order that grievances may be handled in an orderly fashion, the following procedure shall be followed:

#### **LEVEL I**

Any teacher, group of teachers, or the Association or designee believing that there has been a violation of any provision of this Agreement shall, within ten (10) school days after the alleged violation, orally discuss the matter with the building Principal of the school involved. If a satisfactory settlement cannot be reached, the grievance and the Principal's answer shall then be reduced to writing, utilizing the grievance report form in the Appendix, within five (5) school days with notice given to the grieving party/parties and the Association or designee.

#### **LEVEL II**

Within five (5) school days following the receipt by the teacher, group of teachers, or the Association's designee of the Principal's written response, the grievance shall be filed with the Superintendent or designee. The Superintendent or designee shall, within five (5) school days after receipt of the written grievance, meet with the grieving party/parties in an attempt to resolve the dispute. If such a meeting does not resolve the grievance, the Superintendent or designee shall submit an answer, in writing, to the Association designee and teacher within five (5) school days. The grievance shall then be transmitted by the Superintendent to the Board within five (5) school days.

#### **LEVEL III**

At its next regular meeting, the Board shall review the grievance. The Board may hold a hearing, may designate one (1) or more of its members to hold a hearing or otherwise investigate the grievance, or may prescribe such other procedure that it deems appropriate for consideration of the grievance, provided however, that in no event, except by written agreement between the Board and the Association's designee,

shall final determination of the grievance be made by the Board or its delegated representatives more than fifteen (15) school days after the above meeting.

#### **LEVEL IV**

If the decision of the Board does not result in a satisfactory settlement, the grievance may be submitted to arbitration by a written notice given to the Board by the Association's designee within fifteen (15) school days after receipt of the written decision from the Board.

An impartial arbitrator may be selected by the parties to decide the matter. If they cannot agree as to the arbitrator, he/she shall be selected by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its rules which shall likewise govern the arbitration proceedings. The power of the arbitrator shall be limited to the interpretation or application of the expressed terms of this Agreement, and he/she shall have no power to alter, add to, or subtract from the terms of this Agreement. The parties shall not be permitted to assert, in such arbitration proceeding, any ground or to rely on any evidence not previously disclosed. The decision of the arbitrator shall be binding on both parties. The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be shared equally by the Board and the Association.

Section 15.2 - Every grievance shall be processed within the time limits provided herein, unless extended by mutual written agreement.

Section 15.3 - If a teacher is found to have been discharged without just cause, he/she shall be reinstated on such terms as the parties may agree or as the arbitrator shall order.

Section 15.4 - Either party may have representation at any step of the grievance procedure.

Section 15.5 - In the event a grievance is filed after May 1st of any year and strict adherence to the time limits may result in hardship of any party, the Superintendent shall use his/her best efforts to process such grievance prior to the end of the school term or as soon thereafter as possible. If the grievance is processed to arbitration, the Association may submit the grievance to expedited arbitration under the rules of the American Arbitration Association.

### ARTICLE XVI Miscellaneous Provisions

Section 16.1 - This Agreement shall supersede any rules, regulations, or practices of the Board which shall be contrary to or inconsistent with its terms. It shall likewise supersede any contrary or inconsistent terms contained in any individual teacher contracts which shall be made expressly subject to the terms of this Agreement. The provisions of this Agreement shall be incorporated into and be considered part of the established policies of the Board.

Section 16.2 - Copies of this Agreement shall be printed at the expense of the Board and presented to all teachers now employed or hereafter employed by the Board.

Section 16.3 - If any provision of this Agreement or any application of the Agreement to any employee or group of employees shall be found contrary to law, then such provision or application shall not be deemed valid and subsisting except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or application shall continue in full force effect.

Section 16.4 - The Association agrees that it or its representatives or teacher(s) shall not authorize, engage in or ratify a strike within the Sparta Area Public Schools during the life of this Agreement. A strike means the concerted failure to report for duty, the willful absence from one's position, the stoppage of work, or the abstinence, in whole or in part, from the full, faithful, and proper performance of the duties of employment, for the purpose of inducing, influencing, or coercing a change in the conditions or compensation, or the rights, privileges, or obligations of employment as expressed in this Agreement.

Any violation of the above definition shall mean that the Association or its representatives may be held liable for such financial damages and financial costs suffered by the Sparta Area Schools and awarded by the court of competent jurisdiction.

This article shall not be construed to limit, impair or affect the right of any teacher to the expression or communication of a view, grievance, complaint, or opinion on any matter related to the conditions or compensation of employment, so long as the activity is not designed to and does not interfere with the faithful duties of employment. Any individual teacher who violates the above covenant may be disciplined by the Board. Such discipline shall be applied equally to all teachers involved in the violation.

Section 16.5 - A copy of current Board policies including any updates or revisions shall be placed in each building and given to the Sparta Education Association President as they become effective. Revisions will be updated as they take place.

### ARTICLE XVII Duration of Agreement

### **SCHEDULE A**

### 2021-2022 SCALE

	ВА		BA18		BA30		N	1A	MA18		MA30	
	Index	Salary										
1	1.000	43,175	1.055	45,550	1.068	46,123	1.114	48,096	1.148	49,556	1.182	51,018
1.5	1.010	43,607	1.066	46,025	1.090	47,061	1.127	48,658	1.152	49,738	1.197	51,680
2	1.030	44,470	1.087	46,931	1.122	48,442	1.150	49,651	1.185	51,162	1.221	52,717
2.5	1.045	45,118	1.114	48,097	1.139	49,176	1.168	50,428	1.204	51,983	1.241	53,580
3	1.070	46,197	1.130	48,788	1.165	50,299	1.195	51,594	1.233	53,235	1.270	54,832
3.5	1.095	47,277	1.157	49,953	1.192	51,465	1.223	52,803	1.262	54,487	1.300	56,128
4	1.120	48,356	1.183	51,076	1.219	52,630	1.251	54,012	1.290	55,696	1.329	57,380
4.5	1.145	49,435	1.209	52,199	1.246	53,796	1.279	55,221	1.320	56,991	1.359	58,675
5	1.170	50,515	1.235	53,321	1.272	54,919	1.307	56,430	1.347	58,157	1.388	59,927
5.5	1.195	51,594	1.262	54,487	1.299	56,084	1.336	57,682	1.375	59,366	1.418	61,222
6	1.220	52,674	1.288	55,609	1.325	57,207	1.362	58,804	1.405	60,661	1.447	62,474
6.5	1.245	53,753	1.315	56,775	1.352	58,373	1.390	60,013	1.434	61,913	1.477	63,769
7	1.270	54,832	1.341	57,898	1.379	59,538	1.418	61,222	1.462	63,122	1.506	65,022
7.5	1.295	55,912	1.368	59,063	1.406	60,704	1.446	62,431	1.496	64,590	1.536	66,317
8	1.320	56,991	1.394	60,186	1.432	61,827	1.474	63,640	1.520	65,626	1.565	67,569
8.5	1.345	58,070	1.420	61,309	1.459	62,992	1.502	64,849	1.549	66,878	1.600	69,080
9	1.370	59,150	1.446	62,431	1.486	64,158	1.530	66,058	1.577	68,087	1.634	70,548
9.5	1.390	60,013	1.468	63,381	1.508	65,108	1.553	67,051	1.601	69,123	1.664	71,843
10	1.410	60,877	1.488	64,244	1.529	66,015	1.575	68,001	1.624	70,116	1.693	73,095
10.5	1.430	61,740	1.511	65,237	1.551	66,964	1.598	68,994	1.648	71,152	1.723	74,391
11	1.450	62,604	1.532	66,144	1.572	67,871	1.621	69,987	1.672	72,189	1.752	75,643
11.5	1.470	63,467	1.554	67,094	1.599	69,037	1.643	70,937	1.696	73,225	1.782	76,938
12	1.490	64,331	1.575	68,001	1.616	69,771	1.667	71,973	1.719	74,218	1.812	78,233
12.5	1.510	65,194	1.596	68,907	1.637	70,677	1.689	72,923	1.742	75,211	1.830	79,010
13	1.530	66,058	1.616	69,771	1.658	71,584	1.710	73,829	1.764	76,161	1.847	79,744
13.5	1.550	66,921	1.637	70,677	1.679	72,491	1.732	74,779	1.786	77,111	1.861	80,349
14	1.570	67,785	1.658	71,584	1.700	73,398	1.754	75,729	1.808	78,060	1.882	81,255
14.5	1.585	68,432	1.674	72,275		74,088		76,420		78,794		81,773
15	1.600	69,080	1.689	72,923		74,736		77,111	1.841	79,485		82,292
15.5	1.635	70,591	1.725	74,455		75,427	1.826	78,838		81,083		83,673
16	1.650	71,239	1.740	75,125		76,118		79,356		81,773		84,179
16.5	1.660	71,671	1.750	75,556		76,549		79,831	1.905	82,248		84,690
17	1.670	72,102		76,031		77,024		80,306		82,766		85,200

17 F		72 240		76 247		77 240		90 565		02.026		05 455
17.5	1.675	72,318	1.766	76,247	1.789	77,240	1.866	80,565	1.923	83,026	1.979	85,455
18	1.680	72,534	1.772	76,506	1.795	77,499	1.871	80,780	1.928	83,241	1.985	85,710
18.5	1.685	72,750	1.777	76,722	1.800	77,715	1.877	81,039	1.934	83,500	1.991	85,965
19	1.690	72,966	1.782	76,938	1.805	77,931	1.883	81,299	1.940	83,760	1.997	86,221
19.5	1.695	73,182	1.787	77,154	1.811	78,190	1.888	81,514	1.946	84,019	2.003	86,475
20	1.700	73,398	1.793	77,413	1.816	78,406	1.894	81,773	1.951	84,234	2.009	86,730
20.5	1.705	73,613	1.798	77,629	1.821	78,622	1.899	81,989	1.957	84,493	2.015	86,986
21	1.710	73,829	1.803	77,845	1.827	78,881	1.905	82,248	1.963	84,753	2.021	87,240
21.5	1.715	74,045	1.808	78,060	1.832	79,097	1.910	82,464	1.968	84,968	2.027	87,496
22	1.720	74,261	1.814	78,319	1.837	79,312	1.916	82,723	1.974	85,227	2.032	87,751
22.5	1.725	74,477	1.819	78,535	1.843	79,572	1.922	82,982	1.980	85,487	2.038	88,005
23	1.730	74,693	1.824	78,751	1.848	79,787	1.927	83,198	1.986	85,746	2.044	88,261
23.5	1.735	74,909	1.830	79,010	1.853	80,003	1.933	83,457	1.991	85,961	2.050	88,516
24	1.740	75,125	1.835	79,226	1.859	80,262	1.938	83,673	1.997	86,220	2.056	88,771
24.5	1.745	75,340	1.840	79,442	1.864	80,478	1.944	83,932	2.003	86,480	2.062	89,026
25	1.760	75,988	1.856	80,133	1.880	81,169	1.961	84,666	2.020	87,214	2.080	89,791
25.5	1.770	76,420	1.867	80,608	1.891	81,622	1.972	85,120	2.032	87,710	2.092	90,322
26	1.785	77,067	1.883	81,299	1.906	82,292	1.988	85,832	2.048	88,422	2.109	91,056
26.5	1.795	77,499	1.893	81,730	1.916	82,723	1.998	86,264	2.058	88,854	2.119	91,488
27	1.805	77,931	1.903	82,162	1.926	83,155	2.008	86,695	2.068	89,286	2.129	91,920
27+	1.825	78,794	1.923	83,026	1.946	84,019	2.028	87,559	2.088	90,149	2.149	92,783

### 2022-2023 SCALE

	ВА		BA18		BA30		N	1A	MA	<b>A18</b>	M	A30
	Index	Salary	Index	Salary								
1	1.000	44,298	1.055	46,734	1.068	47,323	1.114	49,347	1.148	50,845	1.182	52,345
1.5	1.010	44,741	1.066	47,222	1.090	48,285	1.127	49,924	1.152	51,031	1.197	53,025
2	1.030	45,627	1.087	48,152	1.122	49,702	1.150	50,943	1.185	52,493	1.221	54,088
2.5	1.045	46,291	1.114	49,348	1.139	50,455	1.168	51,740	1.204	53,335	1.241	54,974
3	1.070	47,399	1.130	50,057	1.165	51,607	1.195	52,936	1.233	54,619	1.270	56,258
3.5	1.095	48,506	1.157	51,253	1.192	52,803	1.223	54,176	1.262	55,904	1.300	57,587
4	1.120	49,614	1.183	52,405	1.219	53,999	1.251	55,417	1.290	57,144	1.329	58,872
4.5	1.145	50,721	1.209	53,556	1.246	55,195	1.279	56,657	1.320	58,473	1.359	60,201
5	1.170	51,829	1.235	54,708	1.272	56,347	1.307	57,897	1.347	59,669	1.388	61,486
5.5	1.195	52,936	1.262	55,904	1.299	57,543	1.336	59,182	1.375	60,910	1.418	62,815
6	1.220	54,044	1.288	57,056	1.325	58,695	1.362	60,334	1.405	62,239	1.447	64,099
6.5	1.245	55,151	1.315	58,252	1.352	59,891	1.390	61,574	1.434	63,523	1.477	65,428
7	1.270	56,258	1.341	59,404	1.379	61,087	1.418	62,815	1.462	64,764	1.506	66,713

8													
8.5	7.5	1.295	57,366	1.368	60,600	1.406	62,283	1.446	64,055	1.496	66,270	1.536	68,042
9	8	1.320	58,473	1.394	61,751	1.432	63,435	1.474	65,295	1.520	67,333	1.565	69,326
9.5	8.5	1.345	59,581	1.420	62,903	1.459	64,631	1.502	66,536	1.549	68,618	1.600	70,877
10.	9	1.370	60,688	1.446	64,055	1.486	65,827	1.530	67,776	1.577	69,858	1.634	72,383
10.5	9.5	1.390	61,574	1.468	65,029	1.508	66,801	1.553	68,795	1.601	70,921	1.664	73,712
11       1.450       64,232       1.532       67,865       1.572       69,636       1.621       71,807       1.672       74,066       1.752       77,610         11.5       1.470       65,118       1.554       68,839       1.599       70,833       1.642       72,782       1.696       75,129       1.782       78,939         12       1.490       66,004       1.575       69,769       1.616       71,586       1.667       73,845       1.719       76,148       1.812       80,668         12.5       1.510       66,890       1.596       70,700       1.637       72,516       1.689       74,819       1.742       77,167       1.616       71,586       1.658       73,446       1.710       75,750       1.764       78,142       1.847       81,818         13.5       1.530       68,662       1.637       72,516       1.679       74,376       1.754       77,699       1.808       80,091       1.822       83,369         14.5       1.585       70,212       1.677       74,155       1.716       76,000       1.776       76,600       1.786       79,116       1.842       81,553       1.996       84,342         15.5       1.	10	1.410	62,460	1.488	65,915	1.529	67,732	1.575	69,769	1.624	71,940	1.693	74,997
11.5	10.5	1.430	63,346	1.511	66,934	1.551	68,706	1.598	70,788	1.648	73,003	1.723	76,325
12	11	1.450	64,232	1.532	67,865	1.572	69,636	1.621	71,807	1.672	74,066	1.752	77,610
12.5	11.5	1.470	65,118	1.554	68,839	1.599	70,833	1.643	72,782	1.696	75,129	1.782	78,939
13       1.530       67,776       1.616       71,586       1.658       73,446       1.710       75,750       1.766       78,142       1.847       81,818         13.5       1.550       68,662       1.637       72,516       1.679       74,376       1.732       76,724       1.786       79,116       1.861       82,439         14       1.570       69,548       1.658       73,446       1.700       75,307       1.754       77,699       1.808       80,091       1.822       83,369         14.5       1.585       70,212       1.674       74,155       1.716       76,015       1.770       78,407       1.825       80,844       1.894       83,900         15.5       1.600       70,877       1.689       74,819       1.731       76,680       1.786       79,116       1.841       81,553       1.908       84,332         15.5       1.650       73,979       1.740       77,789       1.828       80,888       1.842       83,900       1.938       85,850         16.5       1.660       73,535       1.750       77,522       1.773       78,540       1.849       81,907       1.993       84,388       1.962       86,933	12	1.490	66,004	1.575	69,769	1.616	71,586	1.667	73,845	1.719	76,148	1.812	80,268
13.5       1.550       68,662       1.637       72,516       1.679       74,376       1.732       76,724       1.786       79,116       1.861       82,439         14       1.570       69,548       1.658       73,446       1.700       75,307       1.754       77,699       1.808       80,091       1.822       83,369         14.5       1.585       70,212       1.674       74,155       1.716       76,015       1.770       78,407       1.825       80,844       1.894       83,900         15.5       1.600       70,877       1.689       74,819       1.731       76,680       1.786       79,116       1.841       81,535       1.906       84,432         15.5       1.650       73,092       1.740       77,079       1.673       78,097       1.838       81,420       1.894       83,990       1.950       86,669         16.5       1.660       73,535       1.750       77,522       1.773       78,540       1.849       81,907       1.953       84,388       1.962       86,893         17       1.670       73,378       1.766       78,230       1.789       79,249       1.866       82,660       1.923       85,185       1.	12.5	1.510	66,890	1.596	70,700	1.637	72,516	1.689	74,819	1.742	77,167	1.830	81,065
14       1.570       69,548       1.658       73,446       1.700       75,307       1.754       77,699       1.808       80,091       1.822       83,369         14.5       1.585       70,212       1.674       74,155       1.716       76,015       1.770       78,407       1.825       80,844       1.894       83,900         15       1.600       70,877       1.689       74,819       1.731       76,680       1.786       79,116       1.841       81,553       1.906       84,432         15.5       1.635       72,427       1.725       76,392       1.747       77,389       1.826       80,888       1.878       83,192       1.938       85,850         16.5       1.660       73,593       1.740       77,079       1.763       78,097       1.838       81,907       1.905       84,388       1.962       86,893         17.7       73,978       1.761       78,009       1.784       79,028       1.860       82,394       1.917       84,919       1.973       87,678         18       1.680       74,441       1.772       78,496       1.795       79,515       1.871       82,882       1.923       85,467       1.995       86,6	13	1.530	67,776	1.616	71,586	1.658	73,446	1.710	75,750	1.764	78,142	1.847	81,818
14.5       1.585       70,212       1.674       74,155       1.716       76,015       1.700       78,407       1.825       80,844       1.894       83,900         15       1.600       70,877       1.689       74,819       1.731       76,680       1.786       79,116       1.841       81,553       1.906       84,432         15.5       1.635       72,427       1.725       76,392       1.747       77,389       1.826       80,888       1.878       83,192       1.938       85,850         16       1.650       73,092       1.740       77,079       1.763       78,097       1.838       81,420       1.894       83,900       1.950       86,369         16.5       1.660       73,535       1.750       77,522       1.773       78,540       1.894       81,907       1.905       84,388       1.962       86,893         17       1.670       73,978       1.761       78,090       1.784       79,028       1.860       82,690       1.917       84,919       1.973       87,416         17.5       1.675       74,612       1.766       78,230       1.789       79,515       1.871       82,882       1.928       85,077       1.98	13.5	1.550	68,662	1.637	72,516	1.679	74,376	1.732	76,724	1.786	79,116	1.861	82,439
15       1.600       70,877       1.689       74,819       1.731       76,680       1.786       79,116       1.841       81,553       1.906       84,432         15.5       1.635       72,427       1.725       76,392       1.747       77,389       1.826       80,888       1.878       83,192       1.938       85,850         16       1.650       73,092       1.740       77,079       1.763       78,097       1.838       81,420       1.894       83,900       1.950       86,369         16.5       1.660       73,535       1.750       77,522       1.773       78,540       1.849       81,907       1.905       84,388       1.962       86,893         17       1.670       73,978       1.761       78,009       1.784       79,028       1.860       82,394       1.917       84,919       1.973       87,416         17.5       1.675       74,119       1.666       78,230       1.799       79,249       1.866       82,660       1.923       85,185       1.979       87,678         18       1.680       74,421       1.777       78,718       1.800       79,751       1.871       83,147       1.934       85,672       1.991<	14	1.570	69,548	1.658	73,446	1.700	75,307	1.754	77,699	1.808	80,091	1.882	83,369
15.5       1.635       72,427       1.725       76,392       1.747       77,389       1.826       80,888       1.878       83,192       1.938       85,850         16       1.650       73,092       1.740       77,079       1.763       78,097       1.838       81,420       1.894       83,900       1.950       86,369         16.5       1.660       73,535       1.750       77,522       1.773       78,540       1.849       81,907       1.905       84,388       1.962       86,893         17       1.670       73,978       1.761       78,009       1.784       79,028       1.860       82,394       1.917       84,919       1.973       87,416         17.5       1.675       74,199       1.766       78,230       1.789       79,249       1.866       82,660       1.923       85,185       1.979       87,678         18       1.680       74,421       1.772       78,496       1.795       79,515       1.871       82,882       1.928       85,407       1.985       87,939         18.5       1.685       74,642       1.777       78,718       1.800       79,736       1.877       83,141       1.934       85,672       1.99	14.5	1.585	70,212	1.674	74,155	1.716	76,015	1.770	78,407	1.825	80,844	1.894	83,900
16       1.650       73,092       1.740       77,079       1.763       78,097       1.838       81,420       1.894       83,900       1.950       86,369         16.5       1.660       73,535       1.750       77,522       1.773       78,540       1.848       81,907       1.905       84,388       1.962       86,893         17       1.670       73,978       1.761       78,009       1.784       79,028       1.860       82,394       1.917       84,919       1.973       87,416         17.5       1.675       74,199       1.766       78,230       1.789       79,249       1.866       82,660       1.923       85,185       1.979       87,678         18       1.680       74,421       1.777       78,718       1.800       79,736       1.877       83,147       1.934       85,672       1.991       88,201         19       1.690       74,864       1.782       78,939       1.805       79,958       1.883       33,413       1.940       85,938       1.997       88,463         19.5       1.695       75,085       1.787       79,161       1.811       80,242       1.888       83,635       1.946       86,204       2.003<	15	1.600	70,877	1.689	74,819	1.731	76,680	1.786	79,116	1.841	81,553	1.906	84,432
16.5       1.660       73,535       1.750       77,522       1.773       78,540       1.849       81,907       1.905       84,388       1.962       86,893         17       1.670       73,978       1.761       78,009       1.784       79,028       1.860       82,394       1.917       84,919       1.973       87,416         17.5       1.675       74,199       1.766       78,230       1.789       79,249       1.866       82,660       1.923       85,185       1.979       87,678         18       1.680       74,421       1.772       78,496       1.795       79,515       1.871       82,882       1.928       85,407       1.985       87,939         18.5       1.685       74,642       1.777       78,718       1.800       79,736       1.877       83,147       1.934       85,672       1.991       88,601         19.5       1.695       75,085       1.787       79,161       1.811       80,224       1.888       83,635       1.946       86,204       2.003       88,724         20       1.700       75,307       1.793       79,426       1.816       80,445       1.894       83,900       1.951       86,625       2.00	15.5	1.635	72,427	1.725	76,392	1.747	77,389	1.826	80,888	1.878	83,192	1.938	85,850
17       1.670       73,978       1.761       78,009       1.784       79,028       1.860       82,394       1.917       84,919       1.973       87,416         17.5       1.675       74,199       1.766       78,230       1.789       79,249       1.866       82,660       1.923       85,185       1.979       87,678         18       1.680       74,421       1.772       78,496       1.795       79,515       1.871       82,882       1.928       85,407       1.985       87,939         18.5       1.685       74,642       1.777       78,718       1.800       79,736       1.877       83,147       1.934       85,672       1.991       88,201         19       1.690       74,864       1.782       78,939       1.805       79,958       1.883       83,413       1.940       85,938       1.997       88,463         19.5       1.695       75,085       1.797       79,161       1.811       80,224       1.888       83,635       1.946       86,204       2.003       88,724         20       1.700       75,307       1.793       79,426       1.816       80,445       1.899       84,122       1.957       86,691       2.015<	16	1.650	73,092	1.740	77,079	1.763	78,097	1.838	81,420	1.894	83,900	1.950	86,369
17.5       1.675       74,199       1.766       78,230       1.789       79,249       1.866       82,660       1.923       85,185       1.979       87,678         18       1.680       74,421       1.772       78,496       1.795       79,515       1.871       82,882       1.928       85,407       1.985       87,939         18.5       1.685       74,642       1.777       78,718       1.800       79,736       1.877       83,147       1.934       85,672       1.991       88,201         19       1.690       74,864       1.782       78,939       1.805       79,958       1.883       83,413       1.940       85,938       1.997       88,463         19.5       1.695       75,085       1.787       79,161       1.811       80,224       1.888       83,635       1.946       86,204       2.003       88,724         20       1.700       75,307       1.793       79,426       1.816       80,445       1.894       83,900       1.951       86,625       2.009       88,986         20.5       1.705       75,528       1.798       79,648       1.821       80,667       1.899       84,122       1.957       86,691       2.01	16.5	1.660	73,535	1.750	77,522	1.773	78,540	1.849	81,907	1.905	84,388	1.962	86,893
18       1.680       74,421       1.772       78,496       1.795       79,515       1.871       82,882       1.928       85,407       1.985       87,939         18.5       1.685       74,642       1.777       78,718       1.800       79,736       1.877       83,147       1.934       85,672       1.991       88,201         19       1.690       74,864       1.782       78,939       1.805       79,958       1.883       83,413       1.940       85,938       1.997       88,463         19.5       1.695       75,085       1.787       79,161       1.811       80,224       1.888       83,635       1.946       86,204       2.003       88,724         20       1.700       75,307       1.793       79,426       1.816       80,445       1.894       83,900       1.951       86,425       2.009       88,986         20.5       1.705       75,528       1.798       79,648       1.821       80,667       1.899       84,122       1.957       86,691       2.015       89,248         21       1.710       75,750       1.803       79,869       1.827       80,932       1.905       84,388       1.963       86,957       2.021<	17	1.670	73,978	1.761	78,009	1.784	79,028	1.860	82,394	1.917	84,919	1.973	87,416
18.5       1.685       74,642       1.777       78,718       1.800       79,736       1.877       83,147       1.934       85,672       1.991       88,201         19       1.690       74,864       1.782       78,939       1.805       79,958       1.883       83,413       1.940       85,938       1.997       88,463         19.5       1.695       75,085       1.787       79,161       1.811       80,224       1.888       83,635       1.946       86,204       2.003       88,724         20       1.700       75,307       1.793       79,426       1.816       80,445       1.894       83,900       1.951       86,625       2.009       88,986         20.5       1.705       75,528       1.798       79,648       1.821       80,667       1.899       84,122       1.957       86,691       2.015       89,248         21.5       1.710       75,750       1.803       79,869       1.827       80,932       1.905       84,388       1.963       86,957       2.021       89,701         21.5       1.715       75,971       1.808       80,091       1.832       81,154       1.910       84,609       1.968       87,178       2.	17.5	1.675	74,199	1.766	78,230	1.789	79,249	1.866	82,660	1.923	85,185	1.979	87,678
19       1.690       74,864       1.782       78,939       1.805       79,958       1.883       83,413       1.940       85,938       1.997       88,463         19.5       1.695       75,085       1.787       79,161       1.811       80,224       1.888       83,635       1.946       86,204       2.003       88,724         20       1.700       75,307       1.793       79,426       1.816       80,445       1.894       83,900       1.951       86,425       2.009       88,986         20.5       1.705       75,528       1.798       79,664       1.821       80,667       1.899       84,122       1.957       86,691       2.015       89,248         21       1.710       75,750       1.803       79,869       1.827       80,932       1.905       84,388       1.963       86,957       2.021       89,509         21.5       1.715       75,971       1.808       80,091       1.832       81,154       1.910       84,609       1.968       87,178       2.027       89,771         22       1.720       76,193       1.814       80,357       1.837       81,375       1.916       84,875       1.974       87,444       2.032<	18	1.680	74,421	1.772	78,496	1.795	79,515	1.871	82,882	1.928	85,407	1.985	87,939
19.5       1.695       75,085       1.787       79,161       1.811       80,224       1.888       83,635       1.946       86,204       2.003       88,724         20       1.700       75,307       1.793       79,426       1.816       80,445       1.894       83,900       1.951       86,425       2.009       88,986         20.5       1.705       75,528       1.798       79,648       1.821       80,667       1.899       84,122       1.957       86,691       2.015       89,248         21       1.710       75,750       1.803       79,869       1.827       80,932       1.905       84,388       1.963       86,957       2.021       89,509         21.5       1.715       75,971       1.808       80,091       1.832       81,154       1.910       84,609       1.968       87,178       2.022       89,771         22       1.720       76,193       1.814       80,357       1.837       81,337       1.916       84,875       1.974       87,444       2.032       90,034         22.5       1.725       76,414       1.819       80,578       1.843       81,641       1.922       85,141       1.980       87,710       2.03	18.5	1.685	74,642	1.777	78,718	1.800	79,736	1.877	83,147	1.934	85,672	1.991	88,201
20       1.700       75,307       1.793       79,426       1.816       80,445       1.894       83,900       1.951       86,425       2.009       88,986         20.5       1.705       75,528       1.798       79,648       1.821       80,667       1.899       84,122       1.957       86,691       2.015       89,248         21       1.710       75,750       1.803       79,869       1.827       80,932       1.905       84,388       1.963       86,957       2.021       89,509         21.5       1.715       75,971       1.808       80,091       1.832       81,154       1.910       84,609       1.968       87,178       2.027       89,771         22       1.720       76,193       1.814       80,357       1.837       81,375       1.916       84,875       1.974       87,444       2.032       90,034         22.5       1.725       76,414       1.819       80,578       1.843       81,641       1.922       85,141       1.980       87,710       2.038       90,294         23.5       1.735       76,636       1.824       80,800       1.848       81,863       1.927       85,362       1.986       87,976       2.04	19	1.690	74,864	1.782	78,939	1.805	79,958	1.883	83,413	1.940	85,938	1.997	88,463
20.5       1.705       75,528       1.798       79,648       1.821       80,667       1.899       84,122       1.957       86,691       2.015       89,248         21       1.710       75,750       1.803       79,869       1.827       80,932       1.905       84,388       1.963       86,957       2.021       89,509         21.5       1.715       75,971       1.808       80,091       1.832       81,154       1.910       84,609       1.968       87,178       2.027       89,771         22       1.720       76,193       1.814       80,357       1.837       81,375       1.916       84,875       1.974       87,444       2.032       90,034         22.5       1.725       76,414       1.819       80,578       1.843       81,641       1.922       85,141       1.980       87,710       2.038       90,294         23       1.730       76,636       1.824       80,800       1.848       81,863       1.927       85,362       1.986       87,976       2.044       90,557         23.5       1.735       76,857       1.830       81,065       1.853       82,084       1.933       85,628       1.991       88,197       2.05	19.5	1.695	75,085	1.787	79,161	1.811	80,224	1.888	83,635	1.946	86,204	2.003	88,724
21       1.710       75,750       1.803       79,869       1.827       80,932       1.905       84,388       1.963       86,957       2.021       89,509         21.5       1.715       75,971       1.808       80,091       1.832       81,154       1.910       84,609       1.968       87,178       2.027       89,771         22       1.720       76,193       1.814       80,357       1.837       81,375       1.916       84,875       1.974       87,444       2.032       90,034         22.5       1.725       76,414       1.819       80,578       1.843       81,641       1.922       85,141       1.980       87,710       2.038       90,294         23       1.730       76,636       1.824       80,800       1.848       81,863       1.927       85,362       1.986       87,976       2.044       90,557         23.5       1.735       76,857       1.830       81,065       1.853       82,084       1.933       85,628       1.991       88,197       2.050       90,819         24       1.740       77,079       1.835       81,287       1.859       82,350       1.938       85,850       1.997       88,463       2.056<	20	1.700	75,307	1.793	79,426	1.816	80,445	1.894	83,900	1.951	86,425	2.009	88,986
21.5       1.715       75,971       1.808       80,091       1.832       81,154       1.910       84,609       1.968       87,178       2.027       89,771         22       1.720       76,193       1.814       80,357       1.837       81,375       1.916       84,875       1.974       87,444       2.032       90,034         22.5       1.725       76,414       1.819       80,578       1.843       81,641       1.922       85,141       1.980       87,710       2.038       90,294         23       1.730       76,636       1.824       80,800       1.848       81,863       1.927       85,362       1.986       87,976       2.044       90,557         23.5       1.735       76,857       1.830       81,065       1.853       82,084       1.933       85,628       1.991       88,197       2.050       90,819         24       1.740       77,079       1.835       81,287       1.859       82,350       1.938       85,850       1.997       88,463       2.056       91,080         24.5       1.745       77,300       1.840       81,508       1.864       82,571       1.944       86,115       2.003       88,729       2.06	20.5	1.705	75,528	1.798	79,648	1.821	80,667	1.899	84,122	1.957	86,691	2.015	89,248
22       1.720       76,193       1.814       80,357       1.837       81,375       1.916       84,875       1.974       87,444       2.032       90,034         22.5       1.725       76,414       1.819       80,578       1.843       81,641       1.922       85,141       1.980       87,710       2.038       90,294         23       1.730       76,636       1.824       80,800       1.848       81,863       1.927       85,362       1.986       87,976       2.044       90,557         23.5       1.735       76,857       1.830       81,065       1.853       82,084       1.933       85,628       1.991       88,197       2.050       90,819         24       1.740       77,079       1.835       81,287       1.859       82,350       1.938       85,850       1.997       88,463       2.056       91,080         24.5       1.745       77,300       1.840       81,508       1.864       82,571       1.944       86,115       2.003       88,729       2.062       91,342         25.5       1.760       77,964       1.856       82,217       1.880       83,280       1.961       86,868       2.020       89,482       2.08	21	1.710	75,750	1.803	79,869	1.827	80,932	1.905	84,388	1.963	86,957	2.021	89,509
22.5       1.725       76,414       1.819       80,578       1.843       81,641       1.922       85,141       1.980       87,710       2.038       90,294         23       1.730       76,636       1.824       80,800       1.848       81,863       1.927       85,362       1.986       87,976       2.044       90,557         23.5       1.735       76,857       1.830       81,065       1.853       82,084       1.933       85,628       1.991       88,197       2.050       90,819         24       1.740       77,079       1.835       81,287       1.859       82,350       1.938       85,850       1.997       88,463       2.056       91,080         24.5       1.745       77,300       1.840       81,508       1.864       82,571       1.944       86,115       2.003       88,729       2.062       91,342         25       1.760       77,964       1.856       82,217       1.880       83,280       1.961       86,868       2.020       89,482       2.080       92,127         25.5       1.770       78,407       1.867       82,704       1.891       83,745       1.972       87,334       2.032       89,991       2.09	21.5	1.715	75,971	1.808	80,091	1.832	81,154	1.910	84,609	1.968	87,178	2.027	89,771
23       1.730       76,636       1.824       80,800       1.848       81,863       1.927       85,362       1.986       87,976       2.044       90,557         23.5       1.735       76,857       1.830       81,065       1.853       82,084       1.933       85,628       1.991       88,197       2.050       90,819         24       1.740       77,079       1.835       81,287       1.859       82,350       1.938       85,850       1.997       88,463       2.056       91,080         24.5       1.745       77,300       1.840       81,508       1.864       82,571       1.944       86,115       2.003       88,729       2.062       91,342         25       1.760       77,964       1.856       82,217       1.880       83,280       1.961       86,868       2.020       89,482       2.080       92,127         25.5       1.770       78,407       1.867       82,704       1.891       83,745       1.972       87,334       2.032       89,991       2.092       92,671         26       1.785       79,072       1.883       83,413       1.906       84,432       1.988       88,064       2.048       90,722       2.109<	22	1.720	76,193	1.814	80,357	1.837	81,375	1.916	84,875	1.974	87,444	2.032	90,034
23.5       1.735       76,857       1.830       81,065       1.853       82,084       1.933       85,628       1.991       88,197       2.050       90,819         24       1.740       77,079       1.835       81,287       1.859       82,350       1.938       85,850       1.997       88,463       2.056       91,080         24.5       1.745       77,300       1.840       81,508       1.864       82,571       1.944       86,115       2.003       88,729       2.062       91,342         25       1.760       77,964       1.856       82,217       1.880       83,280       1.961       86,868       2.020       89,482       2.080       92,127         25.5       1.770       78,407       1.867       82,704       1.891       83,745       1.972       87,334       2.032       89,991       2.092       92,671         26       1.785       79,072       1.883       83,413       1.906       84,432       1.988       88,064       2.048       90,722       2.109       93,424         26.5       1.795       79,515       1.893       83,856       1.916       84,875       1.998       88,507       2.058       91,165       2.11	22.5	1.725	76,414	1.819	80,578	1.843	81,641	1.922	85,141	1.980	87,710	2.038	90,294
24       1.740       77,079       1.835       81,287       1.859       82,350       1.938       85,850       1.997       88,463       2.056       91,080         24.5       1.745       77,300       1.840       81,508       1.864       82,571       1.944       86,115       2.003       88,729       2.062       91,342         25       1.760       77,964       1.856       82,217       1.880       83,280       1.961       86,868       2.020       89,482       2.080       92,127         25.5       1.770       78,407       1.867       82,704       1.891       83,745       1.972       87,334       2.032       89,991       2.092       92,671         26       1.785       79,072       1.883       83,413       1.906       84,432       1.988       88,064       2.048       90,722       2.109       93,424         26.5       1.795       79,515       1.893       83,856       1.916       84,875       1.998       88,507       2.058       91,165       2.119       93,867         27       1.805       79,958       1.903       84,299       1.926       85,318       2.008       88,950       2.068       91,608       2.129<	23	1.730	76,636	1.824	80,800	1.848	81,863	1.927	85,362	1.986	87,976	2.044	90,557
24.5       1.745       77,300       1.840       81,508       1.864       82,571       1.944       86,115       2.003       88,729       2.062       91,342         25       1.760       77,964       1.856       82,217       1.880       83,280       1.961       86,868       2.020       89,482       2.080       92,127         25.5       1.770       78,407       1.867       82,704       1.891       83,745       1.972       87,334       2.032       89,991       2.092       92,671         26       1.785       79,072       1.883       83,413       1.906       84,432       1.988       88,064       2.048       90,722       2.109       93,424         26.5       1.795       79,515       1.893       83,856       1.916       84,875       1.998       88,507       2.058       91,165       2.119       93,867         27       1.805       79,958       1.903       84,299       1.926       85,318       2.008       88,950       2.068       91,608       2.129       94,310	23.5	1.735	76,857	1.830	81,065	1.853	82,084	1.933	85,628	1.991	88,197	2.050	90,819
25       1.760       77,964       1.856       82,217       1.880       83,280       1.961       86,868       2.020       89,482       2.080       92,127         25.5       1.770       78,407       1.867       82,704       1.891       83,745       1.972       87,334       2.032       89,991       2.092       92,671         26       1.785       79,072       1.883       83,413       1.906       84,432       1.988       88,064       2.048       90,722       2.109       93,424         26.5       1.795       79,515       1.893       83,856       1.916       84,875       1.998       88,507       2.058       91,165       2.119       93,867         27       1.805       79,958       1.903       84,299       1.926       85,318       2.008       88,950       2.068       91,608       2.129       94,310	24	1.740	77,079	1.835	81,287	1.859	82,350	1.938	85,850	1.997	88,463	2.056	91,080
25.5     1.770     78,407     1.867     82,704     1.891     83,745     1.972     87,334     2.032     89,991     2.092     92,671       26     1.785     79,072     1.883     83,413     1.906     84,432     1.988     88,064     2.048     90,722     2.109     93,424       26.5     1.795     79,515     1.893     83,856     1.916     84,875     1.998     88,507     2.058     91,165     2.119     93,867       27     1.805     79,958     1.903     84,299     1.926     85,318     2.008     88,950     2.068     91,608     2.129     94,310	24.5	1.745	77,300	1.840	81,508	1.864	82,571	1.944	86,115	2.003	88,729	2.062	91,342
26       1.785       79,072       1.883       83,413       1.906       84,432       1.988       88,064       2.048       90,722       2.109       93,424         26.5       1.795       79,515       1.893       83,856       1.916       84,875       1.998       88,507       2.058       91,165       2.119       93,867         27       1.805       79,958       1.903       84,299       1.926       85,318       2.008       88,950       2.068       91,608       2.129       94,310	25	1.760	77,964	1.856	82,217	1.880	83,280	1.961	86,868	2.020	89,482	2.080	92,127
26.5     1.795     79,515     1.893     83,856     1.916     84,875     1.998     88,507     2.058     91,165     2.119     93,867       27     1.805     79,958     1.903     84,299     1.926     85,318     2.008     88,950     2.068     91,608     2.129     94,310	25.5	1.770	78,407	1.867	82,704	1.891	83,745	1.972	87,334	2.032	89,991	2.092	92,671
27 1.805 79,958 1.903 84,299 1.926 85,318 2.008 88,950 2.068 91,608 2.129 94,310	26	1.785	79,072	1.883	83,413	1.906	84,432	1.988	88,064	2.048	90,722	2.109	93,424
	26.5	1.795	79,515	1.893	83,856	1.916	84,875	1.998	88,507	2.058	91,165	2.119	93,867
27+ 1.825 80,844 1.923 85,185 1.946 86,204 2.028 89,836 2.088 92,494 2.149 95,196	27	1.805	79,958	1.903	84,299	1.926	85,318	2.008	88,950	2.068	91,608	2.129	94,310
	27+	1.825	80,844	1.923	85,185	1.946	86,204	2.028	89,836	2.088	92,494	2.149	95,196

### 2023-2024 SCALE

	В	Α	BA18		BA	<b>\30</b>	IV	IA	MA	<b>A18</b>	MA	<b>\30</b>
	Index	Salary	Index	Salary	Index	Salary	Index	Salary	Index	Salary	Index	Salary
1	1.000	45,450	1.055	47,950	1.068	48,553	1.114	50,631	1.148	52,167	1.182	53,706
1.5	1.010	45,905	1.066	48,450	1.090	49,541	1.127	51,222	1.152	52,358	1.197	54,404
2	1.030	46,814	1.087	49,404	1.122	50,995	1.150	52,268	1.185	53,858	1.221	55,494
2.5	1.045	47,495	1.114	50,631	1.139	51,768	1.168	53,086	1.204	54,722	1.241	56,403
3	1.070	48,632	1.130	51,359	1.165	52,949	1.195	54,313	1.233	56,040	1.270	57,722
3.5	1.095	49,768	1.157	52,586	1.192	54,176	1.223	55,585	1.262	57,358	1.300	59,085
4	1.120	50,904	1.183	53,767	1.219	55,404	1.251	56,858	1.290	58,631	1.329	60,403
4.5	1.145	52,040	1.209	54,949	1.246	56,631	1.279	58,131	1.320	59,994	1.359	61,767
5	1.170	53,177	1.235	56,131	1.272	57,812	1.307	59,403	1.347	61,221	1.388	63,085
5.5	1.195	54,313	1.262	57,358	1.299	59,040	1.336	60,721	1.375	62,494	1.418	64,448
6	1.220	55,449	1.288	58,540	1.325	60,221	1.362	61,903	1.405	63,857	1.447	65,766
6.5	1.245	56,585	1.315	59,767	1.352	61,448	1.390	63,176	1.434	65,175	1.477	67,130
7	1.270	57,722	1.341	60,948	1.379	62,676	1.418	64,448	1.462	66,448	1.506	68,448
7.5	1.295	58,858	1.368	62,176	1.406	63,903	1.446	65,721	1.496	67,993	1.536	69,811
8	1.320	59,994	1.394	63,357	1.432	65,084	1.474	66,993	1.520	69,084	1.565	71,129
8.5	1.345	61,130	1.420	64,539	1.459	66,312	1.502	68,266	1.549	70,402	1.600	72,720
9	1.370	62,267	1.446	65,721	1.486	67,539	1.530	69,539	1.577	71,675	1.634	74,265
9.5	1.390	63,176	1.468	66,721	1.508	68,539	1.553	70,584	1.601	72,765	1.664	75,629
10	1.410	64,085	1.488	67,630	1.529	69,493	1.575	71,584	1.624	73,811	1.693	76,947
10.5	1.430	64,994	1.511	68,675	1.551	70,493	1.598	72,629	1.648	74,902	1.723	78,310
11	1.450	65,903	1.532	69,629	1.572	71,447	1.621	73,674	1.672	75,992	1.752	79,628
11.5	1.470	66,812	1.554	70,629	1.599	72,675	1.643	74,674	1.696	77,083	1.782	80,992
12	1.490	67,721	1.575	71,584	1.616	73,447	1.667	75,765	1.719	78,129		82,355
12.5	1.510	68,630	1.596	72,538	1.637	74,402	1.689	76,765	1.742	79,174		83,174
13	1.530	69,539	1.616	73,447	1.658	75,356	1.710	77,720	1.764	80,174		83,946
13.5	1.550	70,448	1.637	74,402		76,311	1.732	78,719		81,174		84,582
14	1.570	71,357	1.658	75,356		77,265	1.754	79,719	1.808	82,174		85,5 <b>3</b> 7
14.5	1.585	72,038	1.674	76,083		77,992	1.770	80,447	1.825	82,946		86,082
15	1.600	72,720	1.689	76,765		78,674	1.786	81,174	1.841	83,673		86,628
15.5	1.635	74,311	1.725	78,379		79,401	1.826	82,992	1.878	85,355		88,082
16	1.650	74,993	1.740	79,083		80,128	1.838	83,537	1.894	86,082		88,615
16.5	1.660	75,447		79,538	1.773	80,583	1.849	84,037	1.905	86,582		89,153
17		75,902	1.750	80,037		81,083		84,537		87,128		89,689
	1.670	ī	1.761		1.784		1.860		1.917			
17.5	1.675	76,129	1.766	80,265	1.789	81,310	1.866	84,810	1.923	87,400	1.979	89,958

						-		i				
18	1.680	76,356	1.772	80,537	1.795	81,583	1.871	85,037	1.928	87,628	1.985	90,226
18.5	1.685	76,583	1.777	80,765	1.800	81,810	1.877	85,310	1.934	87,900	1.991	90,495
19	1.690	76,811	1.782	80,992	1.805	82,037	1.883	85,582	1.940	88,173	1.997	90,764
19.5	1.695	77,038	1.787	81,219	1.811	82,310	1.888	85,810	1.946	88,446	2.003	91,032
20	1.700	77,265	1.793	81,492	1.816	82,537	1.894	86,082	1.951	88,673	2.009	91,300
20.5	1.705	77,492	1.798	81,719	1.821	82,764	1.899	86,310	1.957	88,946	2.015	91,569
21	1.710	77,720	1.803	81,946	1.827	83,037	1.905	86,582	1.963	89,218	2.021	91,837
21.5	1.715	77,947	1.808	82,174	1.832	83,264	1.910	86,810	1.968	89,446	2.027	92,106
22	1.720	78,174	1.814	82,446	1.837	83,492	1.916	87,082	1.974	89,718	2.032	92,375
22.5	1.725	78,401	1.819	82,674	1.843	83,764	1.922	87,355	1.980	89,991	2.038	92,643
23	1.730	78,629	1.824	82,901	1.848	83,992	1.927	87,582	1.986	90,264	2.044	92,912
23.5	1.735	78,856	1.830	83,174	1.853	84,219	1.933	87,855	1.991	90,491	2.050	93,180
24	1.740	79,083	1.835	83,401	1.859	84,492	1.938	88,082	1.997	90,764	2.056	93,448
24.5	1.745	79,310	1.840	83,628	1.864	84,719	1.944	88,355	2.003	91,036	2.062	93,717
25	1.760	79,992	1.856	84,355	1.880	85,446	1.961	89,127	2.020	91,809	2.080	94,523
25.5	1.770	80,447	1.867	84,855	1.891	85,923	1.972	89,605	2.032	92,332	2.092	95,081
26	1.785	81,128	1.883	85,582	1.906	86,628	1.988	90,355	2.048	93,082	2.109	95,854
26.5	1.795	81,583	1.893	86,037	1.916	87,082	1.998	90,809	2.058	93,536	2.119	96,309
27	1.805	82,037	1.903	86,491	1.926	87,537	2.008	91,264	2.068	93,991	2.129	96,763
27+	1.825	82,946	1.923	87,400	1.946	88,446	2.028	92,173	2.088	94,900	2.149	97,672

<sup>\*</sup>For the AB+30 and the MA+18 lanes please note that these two lanes pertain only to those who were grandfathered in and no one else can move to them.

### **SCHEDULE B**

(Percentage of the Base)	SCI
Marching Band	9.5
Assistant Marching Band	5.5
HS Concert Band and Ensembles	3.0
MS Band and Ensembles	3.0
Jazz Band	3.0
High School Choral Director*	3.0
Middle SchoolChoral*	3.0
HS Drama/Musical Director (per play)	3.5
Middle School Drama	3.5
BSI Chair	2.75
Class Sponsors - 11/12 grade	2.4 (2)
Class Sponsors - 9/10 grade	1.8 (2)
National Honor Society	2.0
Student Council High School	2.0
National Junior Honor Society	1.0
Student Council Middle School	1.0
Science Olympiad	3.4 (2)
Special Olympics - HS	1.9
Special Olympics - MS	1.65
Special Olympics - Elementary	1.4

<sup>(\*)</sup> If these positions are held by one person, the combined rate will be 5.0%

All positions must be approved by the Board of Education. To be eligible, activities must take place outside of the regular school hours. The Board of Education may authorize additional pilot programs by the Letter of Understanding process.

### SCHEDULE C

Percentage of Base	Step I	Step II	Step III	Step IV	Step V
Baseball-Track-Softball-Soccer					
Head Coach**	8.0	9.0	10.0	11.0	12.5
Assistant Coach	6.0	6.5	7.0	7.75	8.75
Freshman Coach	5.5	6.0	6.5	7.0	7.5
Cross Country-Tennis-Golf-Bowli	ing				
Head Coach	6.5	7.5	8.5	9.5	11.0
Assistant Coach	3.5	4.0	4.5	5.0	6.0
High School Basketball-Football-Wrestling-Vo	lleyball				
Head Coach**	10.5	11.5	12.5	13.5	15.5
Assistant Coach	6.5	7.5	8.5	9.5	11.0
Freshman Coach	6.25	7.25	8.0	9.0	10.25
Sideline Cheerleading					
Head Coach	3.5	4.0	4.5	5.0	6.0
Assistant Coach	2.5	3.0	3.5	4.0	4.5
Freshman Coach	2.25	2.75	3.25	3.75	4.25

### **Competitive Cheerleading**

Head Coach	6.5	7.5	8.5	9.5	11.0
Assistant Coach	3.5	4.0	4.5	5.0	6.0
Freshman Coach	3.0	3.5	4.0	4.5	5.5
Middle School Football-Basketball-Wrestling-V	olleyball				
	3.5	4.5	5.5	6.5	7.5
Coaches coaching both A & B team	ns at the same t	ime will receive	e an additional	1.0%.	
MS Track	3.5	4.5	5.5	6.5	7.5
MS Cross Country	3.5	4.5	5.5	6.5	7.5
MS Cheerleading	1.5	1.5	1.75	1.75	2.0
Intramural Coordinator (per se	ason, per sport)	)			3.0

Non-Association coaches will be contracted through a third party at the discretion of the Board. Coaches that are

Association members will have the option of being hired by the Board or contracted through a third party.

### **Schedule D**

Fringe Benefits

### **PLANA**

- 1. Board will provide health insurance through the West Michigan Health Insurance Pool, up to the legislative cap of premium costs.
- 2. The Board shall pay the current full premium of Group Long Term Disability Insurance Policy Plan, \$4000 maximum monthly benefit.
- 3. The Board agrees to pay the full premium for Group Term Life Insurance in the amount of \$40,000. This policy shall include accidental death and dismemberment and waiver of premium for disability.
- 4. Plan A dental coverage to coordination of benefits (50/50/50) or 75/75/50/50 for those with no coordination, \$1,800 maximum orthodontic rider, adult orthodontics included.
- 5. The Board will provide a self-funded Plan A vision care of like coverage to previous plan limits.

Part-time employees must pay a comparable percent of their health insurance premium, i.e.7 FTE employees pay 30% of their premium. Each teacher will have the right to select Plan A or one (1) of the following two (2) options referred to as Plans B and C.

#### PLAN B

Cash in lieu of health insurance paid out over 26 pay periods starting in October and increases year to year in response to the medical CPI.

- 1. 50/50/50 Dental with coordination of benefits or 75/75/50/50 for those with no coordination.
- 2. Same Vision Plan A
- 3. Same LTD Plan A
- 4. Same Life Plan A

### PLAN C

Cash in lieu of health insurance paid out over 26 pay periods starting in October and increases year to year in response to the medical CPI.

- 1. Same LTD as Plan A
- 2. Same Life as Plan A

"If both the employee (as defined in Article I Recognition) and his/her spouse have the option to select insurance benefits with his/her employer in lieu of hospital-medical insurance coverage, one (1) must choose an optional package of insurance fringe benefits. If the Sparta Area Schools employee's spouse does not have the option to choose insurance coverage or fringe benefits with their employer, the employee shall so indicate by requesting a letter from the spouse's employer to be sent to the Sparta Area Schools. Employees with spouses working for other employers provided with insurance fringe benefits and lacking a choice in selection of insurance benefits received, shall have a right to select any of the plans offered under the effective Master Agreement."

A full-time teacher can select Plan C only if his/her spouse has a dental coverage plan.

All dental plans will have \$1,500 maximum for general dental.

Anyone choosing not to take health and/or dental insurance must provide proof of an alternate existing policy. If teachers elect CILO and later in the same school year elect to move back to insurance, the district will not fund any portion of the H.S.A. deductible.

## **APPENDIX I**

# SUMMARY OF SCHOOL COUNSELOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATION RUBRIC SPARTA AREA SCHOOLS

Counselor Name:	Evaluator Name:	Date:

#### Instructions for evaluation:

The **School Counselor Performance Evaluation Rubric** is scored at the end of the year. It is recommended to the school counselor and the administrator completes the rubric independently. Columns are provided on the rubric for each party to indicate the item score. A face-to-face meeting will provide an opportunity to discuss any discrepancy between the scores. The evaluator will make the final determination of the score for each rubric, following the face-to-face discussions.

AREA	AREA SCORING POINTS
AREA I –S.C.C. Curriculum	
AREA II – Individual Planning	
AREA III – Responsive Services	
AREA IV –Indirect Services	
AREA V –Program Planning	
AREA VI – Professional Behavior	
	/88

The overall effectiveness rating is found by dividing the accumulated points by the maximum possible points. Use the following table to determine the proper level of effectiveness.

Ineffective	1	0-59.99%
Minimally Effective	2	60-74.99%
Effective	3	75-89.99%
Highly Effective	4	90-100%

Cumulative percentage:	is at level:	[Circle on	ej		
Counselor's overall status:					
INEFFECTIVE	MINIMALLY EFI	FECTIVE	EFFECTIVE	HIGHLY EFFECTIVE	
A designation of 'Ineffective" o	r "Minimally Effecti	ive" will ger	nerate an additio	onal professional goal fo	r the coming year.
	S	TRENGT	гнѕ		
	GRO	OWTH A	REAS		

Employee Signature:	Administrator Signature:
Date:	Date:

These ratings have been discussed between the evaluator and the school counselor. The counselor's signature does not necessarily indicate agreement.

### APPENDIX II

## Psychologist's Summative Evaluation Tool

**Expectations:** 

Not Met

Met

Name:	Date:
Administrator:	_Building:

### I. Psychologist's Therapeutic Process

The psychologist demonstrates:

#### Management and Organization

- 1. Individual Planning
- 2. Maximizes time with students
- 3. Constructively manages student behavior
- 4. Conducts well planned and goal oriented sessions
- 5. Provides timely follow-up
- 6. Interprets test information accurately and appropriately
- 7. Completes necessary paperwork

#### Strategies

- 4. Provides accurate, relevant and unbiased information
- 5. Provides and facilitates classroom sharing on appropriate topics
- 6. Develops workable, effective behavior management plans
- 7. Supports cooperative behavior among students
- 8. Assists in home/school communication

#### Responsive Services

- 4. Identifies problems and issues to be resolved
- 5. Advocates for students and families
- 6. Assists in planning for students through evaluations
- 7. Attends IEPC's, MET's, and Child Study meetings
- 8. Facilitates effective problem solving
- 9. Shares information understandably and positively
- 10. Refers students and/or families to community resources
- 11. Addresses crisis situations

### Systems Support

- 4. Provides comprehensive assessment services
- 5. Documents assessments with work notes and assists with transitions
- 6. Is knowledgeable regarding support services and resources
- 7. Is ethical and discreet with confidential information
- 8. Is prompt, accurate, and comprehensive in collecting and documenting needed information as it relates to the delivery of assessment and evaluative reports

#### Assessment Environment

- 4. Demonstrates strategies to motivate students
- 5. Maintains supportive climate while conducting evaluations
- 6. Establishes rapport with students and their families

#### Constructive Interpersonal Relationships

- 4. Educational Staff
- 5. Parents/Community Members

### Professional Development Responsibilities

- 4. Contributes to organizational solutions outside of assigned responsibility
- 5. Demonstrates a sense of professional responsibility in work habits
- 6. Practices ethical standards and follows legal guidelines
- 7. Understands and follows school/district guidelines, policies, practices
- 8. Demonstrates a commitment toward the school improvement process
- 9. Demonstrates a commitment toward growth in the profession

10. Demonstrates a good faith effort to comple plan	te the professional development
Comment page attachedComment page not attached.	
Psychologist's signature and date	Administrator's signature and date

## Administrative Summative Report

Psychologist:	Building:
Administrator:_	School Year:
Please check off Route: Employe	he appropriate category and forward this form to the administration office in care of the superintendent, personnel file.
	atisfactory atisfactory with Plan for Improvement of Satisfactory with Plan for Improvement of Recommended for Reemployment
Psychologist's c	nments:
Administrator's	omments:
Psychologist's s	nature and date Administrator's signature and date

\*Signatures imply the content of the document has been reviewed and discussed. Explanatory comments are required for any ratings not meeting expected performance.

# **APPENDIX III**

COLLABORATION - The school social worker fosters relationships with school colleagues, parents larger community to support pupil learning, taking leadership opportunities to improve and enhanced

ELEMENT	Ineffective=1	Minimally Effective=2	Effective=3
Participation in Team Meetings Attribute: Team meetings are department, IEP and Child Study Meetings	The school social worker does not attend team meetings and	The school social worker seldom attends team meetings. Participation in the meetings is limited or the school social worker must be prompted to participate and provide input.	The school social worker attends all or nearly all of the team meetings and is an active participant, providing input and suggestions for improving student success in school.
		Attribute: Frequently leaves team meetings prior to end.	Attribute: Attends all meetings with the exception of extenuating circumstances, generally stays for the whole meeting
			·
Problem Solving	The school social worker does not work with parents, school staff and others to develop and implement interventions to solve problems or challenges related to student learning, behavior, or progress; and/or, are ineffective in doing so.  Attributes: SSW: does not or does not frequently provide	others to develop and implement interventions to solve problems or challenges related to student learning, behavior, and progress.  Attributes: SSW: consistently leads and coordinates plans for	The school social worker works effectively with parents, we school staff, and others to develop and implement interventions to solve problems in or challenges related to student learning, behavior, and progress.  Attributes: SSW: consistently leads and coordinates plans for learning for lea
	22.25 not 22.44cma, provide	students	students; there is

	leadership or volunteer to coordinate plans for students		documentation or other evidence (e.g. grades) of effectiveness of the majority of student plans
Response to referrals / timeliness in completing evaluations Attributes: includes FBAs, SpEd evaluations, and formal behavior	The school social worker does not respond to referrals and does not complete evaluations.	The social worker does not respond to referrals in a timely manner and is often late in completing evaluations.	The school social worker responds to a referral and completes evaluations on time, except in extenuating circumstances, where appropriate procedure has been followed and administrative approval is granted for extension.
	Does not complete evaluations within timelines or prior to time-sensitive meetings (e.g. manifestation)		Few to no complaints on responsiveness to referrals.
Relationships with Colleagues Attributes:	The school social worker's relationships with colleagues are negative or self-serving.	The school social worker maintains cordial relationships with colleagues to fulfill the duties that the school or district requires.	Support and cooperation characterize relationships with colleagues.
		Treats others with respect, works effectively on school-based teams, and meets contractual obligations for after school events.	Treats others with respect and contributes to school activities beyond contractual agreement. SSW engages in difficulty conversations with staff and parents without prompting.

ORAL AND WRITTEN COMMUNICATION - The school social worker communicates frequently, effectivity with staff, students, and families regarding evaluations, services provided and student progress, when appropriate.

ELEMENT	Ineffective	Minimally Effective	Effective
Communicating with families regarding students in a timely manner	The school social worker does not provide information to parents and does not respond or responds insensitively to parent concerns about students.	The school social worker adheres to the school's required procedures for communicating to parents. Information provided to families and staff is basic and school social worker may need to be prompted or reminded to share information.	The school social worker communicates with parents and provides useful information to families on student evaluation outcomes or progress.
		Attributes: Parents are informed of progress on behavior plans and most IEP progress notes on time. The majority of reports are given to parents at the IEP meeting.	Attributes: Parents are informed of progress on behavior plans and IEP progress notes on time.  Reports are generally provided to parents prior to IEP meetings
Communicating with staff in a timely manner	Feedback is not provided. The school social worker provides no information to staff regarding the students he/she is working with.	Timeliness of feedback is inconsistent. Responses to staff concerns are minimal.	Feedback is provided in a timely manner. The school social worker communicates with staff about students' progress on a regular basis and is available as needed to respond to staff concerns.
		Attributes: Staff feedback indicates they are not informed and/or unaware of requests or concerns made by parents. The majority of reports are given to staff at the IEP meeting.	parents; actively ensuring that there are not gaps in

	<del> </del>		
			IEP goals / student plans. Reports are generally provided to staff prior to IEP meetings
Utilizing technology to Communicate	The school social worker does not use district resources to enhance productivity and professional practice.	The school social worker occasionally uses district technology resources to communicate with staff and parents, and occasionally applies technology to increase productivity and support professional practice.	The school social worker consistently utilizes functions of district technology resources to communicate with staff and parents and uses technology tools to develop professional, instructional, and communicative materials.
Communicating clearly and accurately	The School Social Worker's written reports are of poor	The School Social Worker's reports are written in an	The School Social Worker's reports are written in a clear
	quality, overly lengthy, cumbersome/verbose, are of limited content, or written in a manner that is difficult to understand and limits its usefulness to the reader.	understandable manner and contain the basic information necessary to convey information from the evaluation. Oral explanations of results are generally understood by parents but include jargon that parents do not understand.	and concise manner, and contain complete information about the evaluation. Oral explanations of results are parent-friendly and indicate a differentiation of delivery based on the situation.
LEARNING			
ELEMENT	Ineffective	Minimally Effective	Effective

Creating an environment of respect and rapport with students	The School Social Worker is not successful in building rapport with students. Interactions with at least some students are negative, demeaning, sarcastic, or inappropriate to the age or culture of the students.	School Social Worker is able to build a basic level of rapport with students, so that duties are carried out to meet requirements. Occupational Therapist-student interactions are generally appropriate, but may reflect occasional inconsistencies, negativity, or disregard for students' cultures.	School Social Worker is able to establish rapport effectively with students. Occupational Therapist-student interactions are mutually respectful and positive. Such interactions are appropriate to developmental and cultural norms.
			Attribute: Sensitivity for the student's welfare and feelings are held above other circumstances; SSW advocates of this in the presence of other adults demonstrated when others are in heightened states of emotion; including the student.
Maintaining Confidentiality	The School Social Worker does not respect the confidentiality of students, parents and staff that they work with.	inappropriately shares information with individuals or often does not take the necessary care to ensure confidential information remains secure.	The school social worker always abides by the established guidelines of confidentiality with respect to the students, parents, and staff they work with. Information is shared only with individuals involved with the case, or according to mandated reporter a law.
			Attribute: A need to know basis is maintained consistently

Knowledge of Students' Approaches to Learning	The SSW is not aware of, or does not respond to, students' individual learning preferences and styles.	The SSW displays general understanding of students' individual learning preferences and styles and occasionally considers them when planning for instruction.	when planning for instruction.
		<u> </u>	L
Student Groups	Students are not productively engaged. Groups are inappropriate to students or instructional goals	Students are only productive when school social worker is involved. Group work is partially organized or partially appropriate to students or instructional goals.	Majority of students are engaged at all times. Group work is organized and fully appropriate to students or instructional goals.
			lge of students' background , and design evaluations re
ELEMENT	Ineffective	Minimally Effective	Effective
Designing evaluation and choosing evaluation tools	School social worker does not choose appropriate evaluation tools or design evaluations to provide the information necessary to address the	School social worker chooses the evaluation tools necessary to address most basic referral concerns. Information yielded by the instruments is minimal.	School social worker chooses appropriate evaluation tools so that referral concerns are addressed.

referral concerns.

T		
	Attribute: Prompting is required to select evaluation tools that would positively contribute to planning or an evaluation, or there is limited knowledge of how to use an evaluation tool commonly used within the department.	Attribute: SSW demonstrates confidence with selection of evaluation tools that would positively contribute to planning or an evaluation; including independently initiating use of tools to gather information prior to evaluations
School social worker does not exhibit necessary skills to administer/interpret instruments in a valid or effective manner.	School social worker exhibits basic proficiency in administering / interpreting evaluation tools.	School social worker is comfortable and proficient in administering and interpreting evaluation tools.
	Attribute: SSW can independently interpret and report out findings for the majority of evaluations. Second opinions are sought for help with interpretation	Attribute: SSW can independently interpret and report out findings for the majority of evaluations. Second opinions are sought, but as validation of a stated interpretation.
	exhibit necessary skills to administer/interpret instruments in a valid or	School social worker does not exhibit necessary skills to administer/interpret instruments in a valid or effective manner.  School social worker does not exhibit necessary skills to administer/interpret instruments in a valid or effective manner.  School social worker exhibits basic proficiency in administering / interpreting evaluation tools.  Attribute: SSW can independently interpret and report out findings for the majority of evaluations. Second opinions are sought for

PLANNING AND ORGANIZATION: The social worker demonstrates thorough and flexible planning meetings and meeting students needs

ELEMENT	Ineffective	Minimally Effective	Effective
Demonstrating organizational / planning skills	The school social worker is unprepared for their duties and shows little evidence of long-term planning. These weaknesses interfere with the quality or timeliness of the work product, and results in the school social worker being consistently behind in their duties.	evidence of planning and preparation for their daily duties, but may have some occasions where the planning	The school social worker usually shows consistent evidence of daily preparation and long-term planning, which typically results in duties being completed in an efficient and timely manner.
		Attributes: SSW sets agendas for team meetings and gathers necessary information prior to those meetings to aid decision-making. SSW is sometimes able to independently make schedule adjustments to meet students' needs.	Attributes: SSW sets agendas for team meetings and gathers necessary information prior to those meetings to aid decision-making. SSW is able to independently make schedule adjustments to meet students' needs.
Organizing / Maintaining Records Attributes: includes communication logs, Medicaid (service logs/monthly summaries), student files/case logs	School social worker frequently loses or has trouble keeping track of materials and records.	School social worker generally maintains records and materials in a satisfactory manner with only occasional misplaced items	The school social worker maintains complete records and organizes materials in an efficient manner.
		SSW sometimes does not anticipate the need for their records to be included at team meetings and the records are not immediately present or accessible	SSW has thorough records readily accessible at team meetings or upon staff request
Goal Development			

	Goals do not reflect assessment findings.	Goals are written to reflect assessment findings, but are difficult to measure.	Goals are written to reflect assessment findings, are measurable and reflect typical hierarchy of development of skill.
Demonstrating Knowledge of Resources Attributes:	School social worker is unaware of district or community resources available for students or staff who needs them.	or community resources	The school social worker is fully aware of available district fund community resources, and utilizes these resources or helps others access them.
		Goals design are not crafted to close the academic/skill gap.	Goals are designed to close the academic/skill gap.
		close the academic/skill gap.	academic/skill gap.

LEARNING: PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT - The school social worker demonstrates deep content opportunities for continued personal and professional growth, and contributes to the profession.

ELEMENT	Ineffective	Minimally Effective	Effective
Knowledge of Special Education State and Federal Rules and Regulations	ı	exhibits adequate knowledge	The school social worker's knowledge of special education rules and regulations is extensive. The school social worker can be counted on to follow these rules and assist others in ensuring they are carried out accurately.
			Attributes: The SSW has extensive knowledge of rules

			and regulations; acts independently to access answers to unknown information prior to seeking clarification.
Growing and			
Developing		1	
Professionally	The school social worker does not participate in, or does not engage in, professional development activities.	The school social worker participates in professional development activities to enhance knowledge or skill when they are offered. The school social worker will maintain professional licensure required by the state.	The school social worker participates in professional development activities to enhance knowledge or skill when they are offered, and often seeks out opportunities for professional development to enhance content knowledge.

## **APPENDIX IV**

COLLABORATION - The Speech Language Pathologist fosters relationships with school colleagues pupil learning, taking leadership opportunities to improve and enhance district efficacy.

ELEMENT	Ineffective=1	Minimally Effective=2	Effective=3
Participation in Team Meetings Attribute: Team meetings are department, IEP and Child Study Meetings	The Speech Language Pathologist does not attend team meetings and does little to be a meaningful participant in the student assistant team process.	The Speech Language Pathologist seldom attends team meetings. Participation in the meetings is limited or the Speech Language Pathologist must be prompted to participate and provide input.	The Speech Language Pathologist attends all or nearly all of the team meetings and is an active participant, providing input and suggestions for improving student success in school.
		Frequently leaves team meetings prior to end.	Attends all meetings with the exception of extenuating circumstances, generally stays for the whole meeting
<b>Problem Solving</b>			
	The Speech Language Pathologist does not work with parents, school staff and others to develop and implement interventions to solve problems or challenges related to student learning, behavior, or progress; and/or, are ineffective in doing so.	others to develop and	The Speech Language Pathologist works effectively with parents, school staff, and others to develop and implement interventions to solve problems or challenges related to student learning, behavior, and progress.
	Attributes: SLP: does not or does not frequently provide	Attributes: SLP: consistently leads and coordinates plans for students	Attributes: SLP: consistently leads and coordinates plans for students; there is

	r		
	leadership or volunteer to coordinate plans for students		documentation or other evidence (e.g. grades) of effectiveness of the majority of student plans
Response to referrals / timeliness in completing evaluations Attributes: referrals for interventions / evaluations	The Speech Language	The Speech Language Pathologist does not respond to referrals in a timely manner and is often late in completing evaluations.	The Speech Language Pathologist responds to a referral and completes evaluations on time, except in extenuating circumstances, where appropriate procedure has been followed and administrative approval is granted for extension.
	Does not complete evaluations within timelines or prior to time-sensitive meetings (e.g. child study follow-up)		Few to no complaints on responsiveness to referrals.
School and Community Relationships Attributes:	The Speech Language Pathologist's relationships with colleagues are negative or self-serving.	The Speech Language Pathologist maintains cordial relationships with colleagues to fulfill the duties that the school or district requires.	Support and cooperation characterize relationships with colleagues.
		Treats others with respect, works effectively on school-based teams, and meets contractual obligations for after school events.	Treats others with respect and contributes to school activities beyond contractual agreement. SSW engages in difficulty conversations with staff and parents without prompting.

ORAL AND WRITTEN COMMUNICATION - The Speech Language Pathologist communicates frequent sensitively with staff, students, and families regarding evaluations, services provided and student technology when appropriate.

ELEMENT	Ineffective	Minimally Effective	Effective
Communicating with families regarding students in a timely manner	The Speech Language Pathologist does not provide information to parents and does not respond or responds insensitively to parent concerns about students.	school's required procedures for communicating to parents.	The Speech Language Pathologist communicates with parents and provides useful information to families on student evaluation outcomes or progress.
		Attributes: Parents are informed of progress on behavior plans and most IEP progress notes on time. The majority of reports are given to parents at the IEP meeting.	Attributes: Parents are informed of progress on plans and IEP progress notes on time. Reports are generally provided to parents prior to IEP meetings
Communicating with staff in a timely manner	Feedback is not provided. The Speech Language Pathologist provides no information to staff regarding the students he/she is working with.	Timeliness of feedback is inconsistent. Responses to staff concerns are minimal.	Feedback is provided in a timely manner. The Speech Language Pathologist communicates with staff about students' progress on a regular basis and is available as needed to respond to staff concerns.
		Attributes: Staff feedback indicates they are not informed and/or unaware of requests or concerns made by parents. The	parents; actively ensuring that

		majority of reports are given to staff at the IEP meeting.	aware of student progress on IEP goals / student plans. Reports are generally provided to staff prior to IEP meetings
Utilizing technology to Communicate	The Speech Language Pathologist does not use district resources to enhance productivity and professional practice.	The Speech Language Pathologist occasionally uses district technology resources to communicate with staff and parents, and occasionally applies technology to increase productivity and support professional practice.	The Speech Language Pathologist consistently utilizes functions of district technology resources to communicate with staff and parents and uses technology tools to develop professional, instructional, and communicative materials.
	The Speech Language Pathologist's written reports are of poor quality, overly lengthy, cumbersome/verbose, are of limited content, or written in a manner that is difficult to understand and limits its usefulness to the reader.	written in an understandable manner and contain the basic information necessary to convey information from the evaluation. Oral explanations of results are generally	The Speech Language Pathologist's reports are written in a clear and concise manner, and contain complete information about the evaluation. Oral explanations of results are parent-friendly and indicate a differentiation of delivery based on the situation.

## **LEARNING**

ELEMENT	Ineffective	Minimally Effective	Effective
Creating an environment of respect and rapport with students	The Speech Language Pathologist is not successful in building rapport with students. Interactions with at least some students are negative, demeaning, sarcastic, or inappropriate to the age or culture of the students.	Speech Language Pathologist is able to build a basic level of rapport with students, so that duties are carried out to meet requirements. Speech Language Pathologist-student interactions are generally appropriate, but may reflect occasional inconsistencies, negativity, or disregard for students' cultures.	_
			Attribute: Sensitivity for the students welfare and feelings are st held above other circumstances; held above other circumstances; SLP advocates for this in the presence of other adults demonstrated when others are in heightened states of emotion; including the student.
Maintaining Confidentiality		shares information with	
			Attributes: A "need to know" basis is maintained consistently
Knowledge of Students'			

Approaches to Learning	The SLP is not aware of, or does not respond to, students' individual learning preferences and styles.	The SLP displays general understanding of students' individual learning preferences and styles and occasionally considers them when planning for instruction.	The SLP knows students' individual learning preferences and styles and considers them when planning for instruction.	ir ar he
Student Groups	Students are not productively engaged. Groups are inappropriate to students or instructional goals.	Students are only productive when Speech Language Pathologist is involved. Group work is partially organized or partially appropriate to students or instructional goals.	Majority of students are engaged at all times. Group work is organized and fully appropriate to students or instructional goals.	(

EVALUATION - The Speech Language Pathologist demonstrates thorough knowledge of students' be challenges and uses this knowledge to set diagnostic goals, select evaluation tools, and design evaluation.

				_
ELEMENT	Ineffective	Minimally Effective	Effective	
Designing evaluation and choosing evaluation tools	Speech Language Pathologist does not choose appropriate evaluation tools or design evaluations to provide the information necessary to address the referral concerns.	Speech Language Pathologist chooses the evaluation tools necessary to address most basic referral concerns. Information yielded by the instruments is minimal.	Speech Language Pathologist chooses appropriate evaluation tools so that referral concerns are addressed.	

		Attributes: Prompting is required to select evaluation tools that would positively contribute to planning or an evaluation, or there is limited knowledge of how to use an evaluation tool commonly used within the department.	Attributes: SLP demonstrates confidence with selection of evaluation tools that would positively contribute to planning or an evaluation; including independently initiating use of tools to gather information prior to evaluations in
			<u> </u>
Skill in using evaluation tools	Speech Language Pathologist does not exhibit necessary skills to administer/interpret instruments in a valid or effective manner.	Speech Language Pathologist exhibits basic proficiency in administering / interpreting evaluation tools.	Speech Language Pathologist is comfortable and proficient in administering and interpreting evaluation tools.
		Attributes: SLP can independently interpret and report out findings for the majority of evaluations. Second opinions are sought for help with interpretation	Attributes: SLP can independently interpret and report out findings for the majority of evaluations. Second opinions are sought, but as validation of a stated interpretation.
Eligibility and Recommendations	Either over- or under-identifies students for special education.	Accurately identifies students for special education, but is easily persuaded to adjust recommendations without appropriate cause.	Accurately identifies students for special education. Works collaboratively with diagnostic team to determine meaningful, consistent recommendations.

	•			
				S
Adherence to KISD Speech and Language Guidelines	Methods do not adhere to KISD Guidelines or standardized assessment procedures.	Adheres to KISD guidelines and standardized testing only.	Adheres to KISD guidelines. Utilizes input from multiple sources to get a complete picture of student functioning in the general education setting, including standardized assessment.	re

The Speech Language Pathologist demonstrates thorough and flexible planning for efficient team students needs

ELEMENT	Ineffective	Minimally Effective	Effective
Demonstrating organizational / planning skills	The Speech Language Pathologist is unprepared for their duties and shows little evidence of long-term planning. These weaknesses interfere with the quality or timeliness of the work product, and results in the Speech Language Pathologist being consistently behind in their duties.	The Speech Language Pathologist sometimes displays some evidence of planning and preparation for their daily duties, but may have some occasions where the planning is insufficient.	
		Attributes: SLP sets agendas for team meetings and gathers necessary information prior to	Attributes: SLP sets agendas for team meetings and gathers necessary information prior to

	1		
		those meetings to aid decision-making. SLP is sometimes able to independently make schedule adjustments to meet students' needs.	those meetings to aid decision-making. SLP is able to independently make schedule adjustments to meet students' needs.
Organizing / Maintaining Records Attributes: includes communication logs, Medicaid (service logs/monthly summaries), student files/case logs	Speech Language Pathologist frequently loses or has trouble keeping track of materials and records.	= -	The Speech Language Pathologist maintains complete records and organizes materialsi in an efficient manner.
		SLP sometimes does not anticipate the need for their records to be included at team meetings and the records are not immediately present or accessible	SLP has thorough records readily accessible at team meetings or upon staff request
Goal Development	Goals do not reflect assessment findings.	Goals are written to reflect assessment findings, but are difficult to measure	Goals are written to reflect assessment findings, are measurable and reflect typical hierarchy of development of skill
Demonstrating Knowledge of Resources	Speech Language Pathologist is unaware of district or ISD resources available for students or staff who needs them.	Speech Language Pathologist displays limited knowledge of district or ISD resources available for students or staff who needs them.	The Speech Language Pathologist is fully aware of available district and ISD resources, and utilizes these resources or helps others access them.

LEARNING: PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT - The Speech Language Pathologist demonstrates deep seeks opportunities for continued personal and professional growth, and contributes to the professional

ELEMENT	Ineffective	Minimally Effective	Effective
Knowledge of Special Education State and Federal Rules and Regulations	The Speech Language Pathologist does not display sufficient knowledge of state and federal special education rules and regulations that are used in their profession or may inconsistently abide by these rules.	The Speech Language Pathologist exhibits adequate knowledge of most special education rules and regulations that are used in their profession on a regular basis and require reminders and/or directives to abide by these rules.	
			Attributes: The SLP has extensive knowledge of rules and regulations; acts independently to access answers to unknown information prior to seeking clarification.
Growing and Developing Professionally Attributes:	The Speech Language Pathologist does not participate in, or does not engage in, professional development activities.	professional development activities to enhance knowledge or skill when they	The Speech Language Pathologist participates in professional development activities to enhance knowledge or skill when they are offered, and often seeks out opportunities for professional development to enhance content knowledge.

	oals designs are not crafted lose the academic/skill gap.	Goals are designed to close the academic/skill gap.

## **APPENDIX V**

COLLABORATION - The Occupational Therapist fosters relationships with school colleagues and plearning, taking leadership opportunities to improve and enhance district efficacy.

ELEMENT	Ineffective=1	Minimally Effective=2	Effective=3
Participation in Team Meetings Attribute: Team meetings are department, IEP and Child Study Meetings	The Occupational Therapist does not attend team meetings and does little to be a meaningful participant in the student assistant team process.	limited or the Occupational	The Occupational Therapist attends all or nearly all of the team meetings and is an active participant, providing input and suggestions for improving student success in school.  Attribute: Attends all meetings with the exception of extenuating circumstances, generally stays for the whole meeting
Durkley Calcina			
Problem Solving Attributes:	The Occupational Therapist does not work with parents, school staff and others to develop and implement interventions to solve problems or challenges related to student learning, behavior, or progress;	The Occupational Therapist occasionally works with parents, school staff, and others to develop and implement interventions to solve problems or challenges	The Occupational Therapist works effectively with parents, we school staff, and others to develop and implement interventions to solve problems in or challenges related to student of

	and/or, is ineffective in doing so.	related to student learning, behavior, and progress.	learning, behavior, and progress.
	Attributes: OT: does not or does not frequently provide leadership or volunteer to coordinate plans for students	Attributes: OT: consistently leads and coordinates plans for students	Attributes: OT: consistently leads and coordinates plans for l students; there is documentation or other evidence (e.g. grades) of effectiveness of the majority of student plans
Response to referrals / timeliness in completing evaluations Attributes: referrals	The Occupational Therapist does not respond to referrals and does not complete	The Occupational Therapist does not respond to referrals in a timely manner and is often	The Occupational Therapist responds to a referral and completes evaluations on time,
for interventions / evaluations	evaluations.	late in completing evaluations.	except in extenuating circumstances, where appropriate procedure has been followed and administrative approval is granted for extension.
	Attributes: Does not complete evaluations within timelines or prior to time-sensitive meetings (e.g. child study follow-up)		Attributes: Few to no complaints on responsiveness to referrals.
School and Community Relationships Attributes:	The Occupational Therapist's relationships with colleagues are negative or self-serving.	The Occupational Therapist maintains cordial relationships with colleagues to fulfill the duties that the school or district requires.	colleagues.
		Attributes: Treats others with respect, works effectively on school-based teams, and meets contractual obligations for after school events.	Attributes: Treats others with respect and contributes to school activities beyond contractual agreement. SSW engages in difficulty

1		
		conversations with staff and parents without prompting.
Ineffective	Minimally Effective	Effective
The Occupational Therapist does not provide information to parents and does not respond or responds insensitively to parent concerns about students.	The Occupational Therapist adheres to the school's required procedures for communicating to parents. Information provided to families is basic and Occupational Therapist may need to be prompted or reminded to share information.	
	Attributes: Parents are informed of progress on behavior plans and most IEP progress notes on time. The majority of reports are given to parents at the IEP meeting.	Attributes: Parents are informed of progress on plans and IEP progress notes on time. Reports are generally provided to parents prior to IEP meetings
Feedback is not provided. The Occupational Therapist provides no information to staff regarding the students he/she is working with.	Timeliness of feedback is inconsistent. Responses to staff concerns are minimal.	Feedback is provided in a timely manner. The Occupational Therapist communicates with staff about students' progress on a regular basis and is available as needed to respond to staff concerns.
	The Occupational Therapist does not provide information to parents and does not respond or responds insensitively to parent concerns about students.  Feedback is not provided. The Occupational Therapist provides no information to staff regarding the students	The Occupational Therapist does not provide information to parents and does not respond or responds insensitively to parent concerns about students.  The Occupational Therapist adheres to the school's required procedures for communicating to parents. Information provided to families is basic and Occupational Therapist may need to be prompted or reminded to share information.  Attributes: Parents are informed of progress on behavior plans and most IEP progress notes on time. The majority of reports are given to parents at the IEP meeting.  Feedback is not provided. The Occupational Therapist provides no information to staff regarding the students

## **LEARNING**

Ineffective	Minimally Effective	Effective
not successful in building	to build a basic level of rapport with students, so that duties are carried out to meet requirements. Occupational Therapist-student interactions are generally appropriate, but may reflect occasional inconsistencies, negativity, or	Occupational Therapist is able to establish rapport effectively with students. Occupational Therapist-student interactions are mutually respectful and positive. Such interactions are appropriate to developmental and cultural norms.
		Attribute: Sensitivity for the students welfare and feelings are held above other circumstances; OT advocates for this in the presence of other adults demonstrated when others are in heightened states of emotion; including the student.
does not respect the confidentiality of students,	inappropriately shares information with individuals or often does not take the necessary care to ensure confidential information remains secure.	always abides by the
	The Occupational Therapist is not successful in building rapport with students. Interactions with at least some students are negative, demeaning, sarcastic, or inappropriate to the age or culture of the students.  The Occupational Therapist does not respect the confidentiality of students, parents and staff that they work	The Occupational Therapist is not successful in building rapport with students.  Interactions with at least some students are negative, demeaning, sarcastic, or inappropriate to the age or culture of the students.  The Occupational Therapist does not respect the confidentiality of students, parents and staff that they work with.  Occupational Therapist to build a basic level of rapport with students, so that duties are carried out to meet requirements. Occupational Therapist-student interactions are generally appropriate, but may reflect occasional inconsistencies, negativity, or disregard for students' cultures.  The Occupational Therapist inappropriately shares information with individuals or often does not take the necessary care to ensure confidential information remains secure.

			Attribute: A "need to know" basis is maintained consistently.
Knowledge of Students' Approaches to Learning	The OT is not aware of, or does not respond to, students' individual learning preferences and styles.	The OT displays general understanding of students' individual learning preferences and styles and occasionally considers them when planning for instruction.	when planning for instruction.
			•
Student Groups	Students are not productively engaged. Groups are inappropriate to students or instructional goals	Students are only productive when Occupational Therapist is involved. Group work is partially organized or partially appropriate to students or instructional goals.	Majority of students are engaged at all times. Group work is organized and fully appropriate to students or instructional goals.
			owledge of students' backgration tools, and design eva
ELEMENT	Ineffective	Minimally Effective	Effective
Designing evaluation and choosing evaluation tools	Occupational Therapist does not choose appropriate evaluation tools or design	Occupational Therapist chooses the evaluation tools necessary to address most	Occupational Therapist chooses appropriate evaluation

	Τ		
	evaluations to provide the information necessary to address the referral concerns.	basic referral concerns. Information yielded by the instruments is minimal.	tools so that referral concerns are addressed.
		Attributes: Prompting is required to select evaluation tools that would positively contribute to planning or an evaluation, or there is limited knowledge of how to use an evaluation tool commonly used within the department.	Attributes: OT demonstrates confidence with selection of evaluation tools that would positively contribute to planning or an evaluation; including independently initiating use of tools to gather information prior to evaluations
Skill in using			
Skill in using evaluation tools	Occupational Therapist does not exhibit necessary skills to administer/interpret instruments in a valid or effective manner.	Occupational Therapist exhibits basic proficiency in administering / interpreting evaluation tools.	Occupational Therapist is comfortable and proficient in administering and interpreting evaluation tools.
		Attributes: OT can independently interpret and report out findings for the majority of evaluations.  Second opinions are sought for help with interpretation	Attributes: OT can independently interpret and report out findings for the majority of evaluations. Second opinions are sought, but as validation of a stated interpretation.
Eligibility and Recommendations			

	Either over- or under-identifies students for special education.	Accurately identifies students for special education, but is easily persuaded to adjust recommendations without appropriate cause.	Accurately identifies students for special education. Works collaboratively with diagnostic team to determine meaningful, consistent recommendations.
Adherence to KISD Occupational Therapy Guidelines	Methods do not adhere to KISD guidelines or standardized assessment procedures.	Adheres to KISD guidelines and standardized testing only.	Adheres to KISD guidelines. Utilizes input from multiple sources to get a complete picture of student functioning in the general education setting, including standardized assessment.

PLANNING AND ORGANIZATION: The Occupational Therapist demonstrates thorough and flexible team meetings and meeting students' needs

ELEMENT	Ineffective	Minimally Effective	Effective
Demonstrating organizational /			1
planning skills	The Occupational Therapist is unprepared for their duties and shows little evidence of long-term planning. These weaknesses interfere with the quality or timeliness of the work product, and results in the Occupational Therapist being	evidence of planning and preparation for their daily duties, but may have some occasions where the planning	The Occupational Therapist usually shows consistent evidence of daily preparation and long-term planning, which typically results in duties being completed in an efficient and timely manner.

	1		
	consistently behind in their duties.		
		Attributes: OT sets agendas for team meetings and gathers necessary information prior to those meetings to aid decision-making. OT is sometimes able to independently make schedule adjustments to meet students' needs.	Attributes: OT sets agendas for A team meetings and gathers necessary information prior to those meetings to aid decision-making. OT is able to independently make schedule adjustments to meet students' needs.
Organizing / Maintaining Records Attributes: includes communication logs, Medicaid (service logs/monthly summaries), student files/case logs	Occupational Therapist frequently loses or has trouble keeping track of materials and records.	Occupational Therapist generally maintains records and materials in a satisfactory manner with only occasional misplaced items.	The Occupational Therapist maintains complete records and organizes materials in an efficient manner.
		OT sometimes does not anticipate the need for their records to be included at team meetings and the records are not immediately present or accessible	OT has thorough records readily accessible at team meetings or upon staff request r
Goal Development Attributes:	Goals do not reflect assessment findings.	Goals are written to reflect assessment findings, but are difficult to measure.	Goals are written to reflect assessment findings, are measurable and reflect typical hierarchy of development of skill.
		Goals design are not crafted to close the academic/skill gap.	Goals are designed to close the academic/skill gap.
Demonstrating Knowledge of Resources			

Γ		
Occupational Therapist is unaware of district or ISD resources available for students or staff who needs them.	1	The Occupational Therapist is fully aware of available district fund ISD resources, and utilizes these resources or helps others access them.
Ineffective	Minimally Effective	Effective
The Occupational Therapist does not display sufficient knowledge of state and federal special education rules and regulations that are used in their profession or may inconsistently abide by these rules.		The Occupational Therapist's knowledge of special education rules and regulations is extensive, The Occupational Therapist can be counted on to follow these rules and assist others in ensuring they are carried out accurately.
		Attributes: The OT has extensive knowledge of rules and regulations; acts independently to access answers to unknown information prior to seeking clarification.
The Occupational Therapist does not participate in, or does not engage in, professional development activities.	The Occupational Therapist participates in professional development activities to enhance knowledge or skill	The Occupational Therapist participates in professional development activities to enhance knowledge or skill
	unaware of district or ISD resources available for students or staff who needs them.  SIONAL DEVELOPMENT - ontinued personal and produced personal and federal special education rules and regulations that are used in their profession or may inconsistently abide by these rules.  The Occupational Therapist does not participate in, or does not engage in, professional	unaware of district or ISD resources available for students or staff who needs them.  displays limited knowledge of district or ISD resources available for students or staff who needs them.  SIONAL DEVELOPMENT - The Occupational Therapist does not display sufficient knowledge of state and federal special education rules and regulations that are used in their profession or may inconsistently abide by these rules.  The Occupational Therapist does not participate in, or does not on to participate in, or does not engage in, professional  The Occupational Therapist does not participate in, or does not engage in, professional development activities to

when they are offered. The Occupational Therapist will maintain professional licensure required by the state.  when they are offered, and often seeks out opportunities for professional development to enhance content knowledge.

### APPENDIX VI

## Calendar will be agreed to by May 1 of each year

AUGUST / SEPTEMBER 2021				
MON	TUE	WED	THU	FRI
16	17	18	19	20
23	24	25	26	27
30	31	1	2	3
6	7	8	7	10
13	14	15	16	17
20	21	22	23	24
27	28	29	30	

OCTOBER 2021				
MON	TUE	WED	THU	FRI
				1
4	5	6	7	8
11	12	13	14	15
18	19	20	21	22
25	26	27	28	29

NOVEMBER 2021				
MON	TUE	WED	THU	FRI
1	2	3	4	5
8	9	10	11	12
15	16	17	18	19
22	23	24	25	26
29	30			

DECEMBER 2021				
MON	TUE	WED	THU	FRI
		1	2	3
6	7	8	9	10
13	14	15	16	17
20	21	22	23	24
27	28	29	30	31

	JA	NUARY 20	022	
MON	TUE	WED	THU	FRI
3	4	5	6	7
10	11	12	13	14
17	18	19	20	21
24	25	26	27	28
31				

## Sparta Area Schools STAFF ONLY-DRAFT 2021-2022

## AUGUST 2021

August 23

August 24

August 18 - New Staff Orientation August 19 - Opening Staff Day-AM

- Staff Work Time-PM - District Open House - Staff PD

- First Day for Students

#### SEPTEMBER 2021

September 3 - No School September 6 - Labor Day - No School

#### OCTOBER 2021 October 6 - Student Count Day - No School for Students

October 15 October 15 - Teacher PD-All Day (6 hrs)

#### NOVEMBER 2021

November 12 - Half day K-5 only, P/T Conferences November 15 - Staff-Virtual PD/PLC/Flex (6 hrs)
November 24 - No School for Staff/Students November 25-26 - Thanksgiving Break

#### DECEMBER 2021 December 17 - Half Day for Students, K-12

December 17 - Staff-PLC/Flex (3 hrs)\* December 20-31 - Christmas Break

#### JANUARY 2022

January 3 - School Resumes - Half Day for Students, K-12 January 21 - Staff-PLC/Flex (3 hrs)\* January 21

#### FEBRUARY 2022

February 9 - Student Count Day - Half Day K-5 only, P/T Conferences February 18

February 21-22 - Mid-Winter Break February 22 - Teacher PD-All Day (6 hrs)

#### MARCH 2022 March 31

- No School

#### APRIL 2022 April 1 - No School April 4-8 - Spring Break April 11 - School Resumes

## MAY 2022

May 13 - Half Day for Students, K-12 May 13 - Staff-PLC/Flex (3 hrs)\* May 30 - No School-Memorial Day

#### JUNE 2022 - Half Day, K-12 June 7

June 8 - Last Day of School (half day)

\* One PLC Flex may be taken as records in each building (3 hrs)

> 184 Staff Report Days 180 Student Days 1 Virtual Learning/PLC Flex Day 1 P/T Conference Day (7 hrs total)

FEBRUARY 2022				
MON	TUE	WED	THU	FRI
	1	2	3	4
7	8	9	10	11
14	15	16	17	18
21	22	23	24	25
28				

MARCH 2022				
MON TUE WED THU FRI				FRI
	1	2	3	4
7	8	9	10	11
14	15	16	17	18
21	22	23	24	25
28	29	30	31	

APRIL 2022				
MON TUE WED THU FRI				FRI
				1
4	5	6	7	8
11	12	13	14	15
18	19	20	21	22
25	26	27	28	29

MAY 2022				
MON	TUE	WED	THU	FRI
2	3	4	5	6
9	10	11	12	13
16	17	18	19	20
23	24	25	26	27
30	31			

JUNE 2021				
MON	TUE	WED	THU	FRI
		1	2	3
6	7	8	9	10
13	14	15	16	17
20	21	22	23	24
27	28	29	30	

# **Grievance Report Form**

Grievance #		Se	chool District	
Distrib. 1. 2. 3. 4.	bution of form: Superintendent Principal Association Teacher			
of Bui	ilding Date Filed	Assignment	Grievant	Name
		LEVEL I		
A.	Date Cause of Grievance Discove	ered:		
B.	1. Statement of Grievance			
	2. Relief Sought			
		Date		Signature
			Signature	Date
C.	Disposition by Principal			
		Signature	Date	
D.	Position of Grievant and/or Associ	ciation		
		Signature	Date	
		LEVEL II		

A. Date Received by Superintendent or Designee

If additional space is needed in reporting Section B1 and B2 attach an additional sheet.

B.	Disposition by Superintendent or Designee			
		Signature		Date
C.	Position of Grievant and/or As	ssociation		
		Signature		Date
		Signature		Date
		LEVEL III		
A.	Date Received by Board of Ed	lucation or Designee		
B.	Disposition by Board			
		Signature	Date	
C.	Position of Grievant and or As	ssociation		
		Signature		Date
		Signature		Date
		LEVEL IV		
A.	Date Submitted to Arbitration			
B.	Disposition and Award of Arb	itrator		
	Signature	Date		

Signatures. In witness thereof, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on their mutual behalf through their duty authorized representatives, in signatures hereafter given:

EDUCATION ASSOCIATION	BOARD OF EDUCATION
ByS.E.A. President	By President
ByS.E.A. Vice-President	
By	By Superintendent
By	By
	ByChief Financial Officer
	Ciner i inductar Officer
Dated this day,	

# SIGNATURES ON FILE